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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Item 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
inTEST CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except share and per share data)
Mar. 31, Dec. 31,
2012 2011
ASSETS: (Unaudited)
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $10,101 $13, 957
Trade accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful
accounts of $147 and $195, respectively 7,942 6,189
Inventories 4,740 3,896
Deferred tax assets 473 453
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 302 302
Total current assets 23,558 24,797
Property and equipment:
Machinery and equipment 3,709 3,585
Leasehold improvements 533 514
Gross property and equipment 4,242 4,099
Less: accumulated depreciation _(3,006) _(2,965)
Net property and equipment 1,236 1,134
Deferred tax assets 2,015 2,028
Goodwill 1,835 1,656
Intangible assets, net 2,522 942
Restricted certificates of deposit 500 500
Other assets 202 180
Total assets $31, 868 $31, 237
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 1,941 $ 1,031
Accrued wages and benefits 1,225 1,795
Accrued sales commissions 516 493
Accrued rent 416 407
Accrued professional fees 371 451



Accrued warranty 285 214
Customer deposits 419 425
Other current liabilities 465 222

Total current liabilities 5,638 5,038

Commitments and contingencies (Notes 10 and 12)
Stockholders' equity:
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value; 5,000,000 shares authorized;

no shares issued or outstanding - -
Common stock, $0.01 par value; 20,000,000 shares authorized;

10,463,255 shares issued 105 105
Additional paid-in capital 26,062 26,035
Accumulated deficit (729) (686)
Accumulated other comprehensive earnings 1,264 1,217
Treasury stock, at cost; 76,328 shares (472) (472)

Total stockholders' equity 26,230 26,199

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $31, 868 $31, 237

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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inTEST CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(In thousands, except share and per share data)

(Unaudited)
Three Months Ended
March 31,
2012 2011

Net revenues $10,731 $11,704
Cost of revenues 6,135 6,611
Gross margin 4,596 5,093
Operating expenses:

Selling expense 1,406 1,385

Engineering and product development expense 924 813

General and administrative expense 1,991 1,634

Restructuring and other charges 359 -
Total operating expenses 4,680 3,832
Operating income (loss) (84) 1,261
Other income (expense):
Interest income 1 3
Interest expense - (1)
Other 12 54
Total other income 13 56
Earnings (loss) before income tax expense (benefit) (71) 1,317
Income tax expense (benefit) (28) 60
Net earnings (loss) $ (43) $ 1,257
Net earnings (loss) per common share-basic $0.00 $0.13
Weighted average common shares outstanding - basic 10,205,114 10,067,748
Net earnings (loss) per common share-diluted $0.00 $0.12
Weighted average common shares and common share

equivalents outstanding - diluted 10,205,114 10,266,644

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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inTEST CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE EARNINGS
(In thousands)

(Unaudited)
Three Months Ended
March 31,
2012 2011
Net earnings (loss) $ (43) $1,257
Foreign currency translation adjustments 47 62
Comprehensive earnings $ 4 $1,319

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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inTEST CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
(In thousands, except share data)

(Unaudited)
Accumulated Total
Common Stock  Additional Other Stock-
———————————————— Paid-In  Accumulated Comprehensive Treasury holders'
Shares  Amount Capital Deficit Earnings Stock Equity
Balance, January 1, 2012 10,463,255 $ 105 $26,035 $(686) $1,217 $(472) $26,199
Net loss - - - (43) - - (43)
Other comprehensive earnings - - - - 47 - 47
Amortization of deferred
compensation related
to restricted stock - - 27 - - - 27
Balance, March 31, 2012 10,463,255 $ 105  $26,062 $(729) $1,264 $(472) $26,230

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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inTEST CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands)

(Unaudited)
Three Months Ended
March 31,
2012 2011
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net earnings (loss) $ (43) $ 1,257
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings (loss) to net cash used in operating
activities:
Depreciation and amortization 218 104
Foreign exchange gain (9) (9)
Amortization of deferred compensation related to restricted stock 27 48
(Gain) loss on sale of property and equipment 3 (40)

Proceeds from sale of demonstration equipment, net of gain 52 -



Deferred income tax expense (benefit) (6) 31
Changes in assets and liabilities:

Trade accounts receivable (574) (2,576)
Inventories (37) (504)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets - 133
Other assets (17) (5)
Accounts payable 833 653
Accrued wages and benefits (576) (492)
Accrued sales commissions (58) 56
Accrued rent 9 110
Accrued professional fees (81) (16)
Accrued warranty 3 23
Customer deposits (7) 233
Other current liabilities 196 (150)
Deferred rent - (29)
Net cash used in operating activities (67) (1,173)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition of business (3,821) -
Purchases of property and equipment - (574)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment - 40
Net cash used in investing activities (3,821) (534)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from stock options exercised - 30
Net cash provided by financing activities 7 : _____ éé
Effects of exchange rates on cash 7 éé _____ éé
Net cash used in all activities -Eé:ééé) _Ei:éi;)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 13,957 6,895

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

Cash payments for:
Domestic and foreign income taxes $ 27 $ 26
Interest $ 4 $ -

Details of acquisition:
Fair value of assets acquired
Liabilities assumed
Goodwill resulting from acquisition

Net cash paid for acquisition

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NON-CASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Forfeiture of non-vested shares of restricted stock $ - $ (20)

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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inTEST CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Unaudited)
(In thousands, except share and per share data)

(1) NATURE OF OPERATIONS

We are an independent designer, manufacturer and marketer of thermal, mechanical and electrical products that are primarily used by semiconductor
manufacturers in conjunction with automatic test equipment ("ATE") in the testing of integrated circuits ("ICs" or "semiconductors"). In addition, in
recent years, we have begun marketing our thermal products in industries outside the ATE industry, such as the automotive, consumer electronics,
defense/aerospace and telecommunications industries.

The consolidated entity is comprised of inTEST Corporation (parent) and our wholly-owned subsidiaries. We have three reportable segments which are
also our reporting units: Thermal Products, Mechanical Products and Electrical Products. We manufacture our products in the U.S. Marketing and support
activities are conducted worldwide from our facilities in the U.S., Germany and Singapore. On January 16, 2012, Temptronic Corporation ("Temptronic"),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of inTEST Corporation, acquired substantially all of the assets and certain liabilities of Thermonics, Inc. ("Thermonics"), a
division of Test Enterprises, Inc. The acquisition of the Thermonics business broadens the product line of inTEST's Thermal Products segment. This
acquisition is discussed further in Note 3.

The semiconductor industry in which we operate is characterized by rapid technological change, competitive pricing pressures and cyclical market
patterns. This industry is subject to significant economic downturns at various times. Our financial results are affected by a wide variety of factors,
including, but not limited to, general economic conditions worldwide and in the markets in which we operate, economic conditions specific to the
semiconductor industry, our ability to safeguard patented technology and intellectual property in a rapidly evolving market, downward pricing pressures
from customers, and our reliance on a relatively few number of customers for a significant portion of our sales. In addition, we are exposed to the risk of
obsolescence of our inventory depending on the mix of future business and technological changes within the industry. As a result of these or other factors,
we may experience significant period-to-period fluctuations in future operating results.

(2) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation and Use of Estimates

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include our accounts and those of our wholly-owned subsidiaries. All significant intercompany
accounts and transactions have been eliminated upon consolidation. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Certain of our accounts, including inventories, long-lived assets, goodwill, identifiable
intangibles, deferred income tax valuation allowances and product warranty reserves, are particularly impacted by estimates.

In the opinion of management, the accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements include all adjustments (consisting only of normal recurring



adjustments) necessary to present fairly the financial position, results of operations, and changes in cash flows for the interim periods presented. Certain
footnote information has been condensed or omitted from these consolidated financial statements. Therefore, these consolidated financial statements
should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and accompanying footnotes included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2011 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 30, 2012 (the "2011 Form 10-K").

Reclassification
Certain prior period amounts have been reclassified to be comparable with the current period's presentation.
Inventories

Inventory is valued at standard cost, which approximates actual cost computed on a first-in, first-out basis, not in excess of market value. Cash flows from
the sale of inventory are recorded in operating cash flows. On a quarterly basis, we review our inventories and record excess and obsolete inventory
charges based upon our established objective excess and obsolete inventory criteria. These criteria identify material that has not been used in a work order
during the prior twelve months and the quantity of material on hand that is greater than the average annual usage of that material over the prior three
years. In certain cases, additional excess and obsolete inventory charges are recorded based upon current industry conditions,
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inTEST CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Unaudited)

(2) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

anticipated product life cycles, new product introductions and expected future use of the inventory. The charges for excess and obsolete inventory we
record establish a new cost basis for the related inventory. We incurred excess and obsolete inventory charges of $150 and $86 for the three months ended
March 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Goodwill, Intangible and Long-Lived Assets

We account for goodwill and intangible assets in accordance with Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") 350 (Intangibles- Goodwill and Other).
Finite-lived intangible assets are amortized over their estimated useful economic life and are carried at cost less accumulated amortization. Goodwill is
assessed for impairment at least annually in the fourth quarter, on a reporting unit basis, or more frequently when events and circumstances occur
indicating that the recorded goodwill may be impaired. In September 2011, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued new guidance
which provides an entity with the option to perform a qualitative assessment to determine whether it is more-likely-than-not that the fair value of a
reporting unit is less than its carrying amount. If an entity determines this is the case, it is required to perform a two-step goodwill impairment test to
identify potential goodwill impairment and measure the amount of goodwill impairment loss to be recognized. The two-step test is discussed below. If an
entity determines that it is more-likely-than-not that the fair value of the reporting unit is greater than its carrying amounts, the two-step goodwill
impairment test is not required. This new guidance was effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2011. We adopted this guidance as of
January 1, 2012. The adoption of this guidance did not have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.

If we determine it is more-likely-than-not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount as a result of our qualitative assessment, we
will perform a quantitative two-step goodwill impairment test. In the Step I test, the fair value of a reporting unit is computed and compared with its book
value. If the book value of a reporting unit exceeds its fair value, a Step II test is performed in which the implied fair value of goodwill is compared with
the carrying amount of goodwill. If the carrying amount of goodwill exceeds the implied fair value, an impairment loss is recorded in an amount equal to
that excess. The two-step goodwill impairment assessment is based upon a combination of the income approach, which estimates the fair value of our
reporting units based upon a discounted cash flow approach, and the market approach which estimates the fair value of our reporting units based upon
comparable market multiples. This fair value is then reconciled to our market capitalization at year end with an appropriate control premium. The
determination of the fair value of our reporting units requires management to make significant estimates and assumptions including the selection of
appropriate peer group companies, control premiums, discount rate, terminal growth rates, forecasts of revenue and expense growth rates, changes in
working capital, depreciation, amortization and capital expenditures. Changes in assumptions concerning future financial results or other underlying
assumptions would have a significant impact on either the fair value of the reporting unit or the amount of the goodwill impairment charge.

Indefinite-lived intangible assets are assessed for impairment at least annually in the fourth quarter, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the asset might be impaired. The impairment test consists of a comparison of the fair value of an intangible asset with its
carrying amount. If the carrying amount of an intangible asset exceeds its fair value, an impairment loss is recognized in an amount equal to that excess.

Long-lived assets, which consist of finite-lived intangible assets and property and equipment, are assessed for impairment whenever events or changes in
business circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets may not be fully recoverable or that the useful lives of these assets are no longer
appropriate. Each impairment test is based on a comparison of the estimated undiscounted cash flows to the recorded value of the asset. If impairment is
indicated, the asset is written down to its estimated fair value. The cash flow estimates used to determine the impairment, if any, contain management's
best estimates using appropriate assumptions and projections at that time.

Stock-Based Compensation

We account for stock-based compensation in accordance with ASC Topic 718 (Compensation - Stock Compensation) which requires that employee share-
based equity awards be accounted for under the fair value method and requires the use of an option pricing model for estimating fair value of stock
options granted, which is then amortized to expense over the service periods. See further disclosures related to our stock-based compensation plan in Note
11.
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inTEST CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



(Unaudited)
(2) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Subsequent Events

We have made an assessment of our operations and determined that there were no material subsequent events requiring adjustment to, or disclosure in, our
consolidated financial statements for the quarter ended March 31, 2012.

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery has occurred or services have been rendered, the price is fixed or
determinable, and collectability is reasonably assured. Sales of our products are made through our sales employees, third-party sales representatives and
distributors. There are no differences in revenue recognition policies based on the sales channel. We do not provide our customers with rights of return or
exchanges. Revenue is generally recognized upon product shipment. Our customers' purchase orders do not typically contain any customer-specific
acceptance criteria, other than that the product performs within the agreed upon specifications. We test all products manufactured as part of our quality
assurance process to determine that they comply with specifications prior to shipment to a customer. To the extent that any customer purchase order
contains customer-specific acceptance criteria, revenue recognition is deferred until customer acceptance.

With respect to sales tax collected from customers and remitted to governmental authorities, we use a net presentation in our consolidated statement of
operations. As a result, there are no amounts included in either our net revenues or cost of revenues related to sales tax.

Product Warranties

We generally provide product warranties and record estimated warranty expense at the time of sale based upon historical claims experience. Warranty
expense is included in selling expense in the consolidated financial statements.

Restructuring and Other Charges

We recognize a liability for restructuring charges at fair value only when the liability is incurred. The three main components of our restructuring plans
have been related to workforce reductions, the consolidation of excess facilities and asset impairments. Workforce-related charges are accrued when it is
determined that a liability has been incurred, which is generally after individuals have been notified of their termination dates and expected severance
benefits. Plans to consolidate excess facilities result in charges for lease termination fees and future commitments to pay lease charges, net of estimated
future sub-lease income. We recognize these charges when we have vacated the premises. In addition, as a result of plans to consolidate excess facilities,
we may incur other associated costs such as charges to relocate inventory, equipment or personnel. We recognize charges for other associated costs when
these costs are incurred, which is generally when the goods or services have been provided to us. Assets that may be impaired consist of property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets. Asset impairment charges are based on an estimate of the amounts and timing of future cash flows related to the
expected future remaining use and ultimate sale or disposal of the asset.

Income Taxes

The asset and liability method is used in accounting for income taxes. Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for operating
loss and tax credit carryforwards and for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of
existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to
taxable income in the periods in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities
of a change in tax rates is recognized in the results of operations in the period that includes the enactment date. A valuation allowance is recorded to
reduce the carrying amounts of deferred tax assets if it is more likely than not that such assets will not be realized.

For the quarters ended March 31, 2012 and 2011, we recorded an income tax benefit of $28 and income tax expense of $60, respectively. On a quarterly
basis, we record income tax expense or benefit based on the expected annualized effective tax rate for the various taxing jurisdictions in which we operate
our businesses. During the past several years, due to our history of operating losses in both our domestic and certain of our foreign operations, we had
recorded a full valuation allowance against the deferred tax assets of these operations, including net operating loss carryforwards, where we believed it
was more likely
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inTEST CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Unaudited)

(2) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

than not that we would not have sufficient taxable income to utilize these assets before they expire. During the second half of 2011, we reversed $3,110 of
the valuation allowance which had been recorded against the deferred tax assets of these operations. The reversal of this amount of the valuation
allowance was based on our current assessment that it is now more likely than not that we will be able to fully utilize these assets in the near future. Some
of the key factors we considered in making our assessment included our profitability in both 2011 and 2010 and our level of certainty with regard to our
forecasts of near term future profitability for the operations to which these assets relate.

Net Earnings (Loss)_Per Common Share

Net earnings (loss) per common share - basic is computed by dividing net earnings (loss) by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding
during each period. Net earnings (loss) per common share - diluted is computed by dividing net earnings (loss) by the weighted average number of
common shares and common share equivalents outstanding during each period. Common share equivalents represent stock options and unvested shares of
restricted stock and are calculated using the treasury stock method. Common share equivalents are excluded from the calculation if their effect is anti-
dilutive.

The table below sets forth, for the periods indicated, a reconciliation of weighted average common shares outstanding - basic to weighted average



common shares and common share equivalents outstanding - diluted and the average number of potentially dilutive securities and their respective
weighted average exercise prices that were excluded from the calculation of diluted earnings per share because their effect was anti-dilutive:

Three Months Ended
March31,
2012 2011
Weighted average common shares outstanding -- basic 10,205,114 10,067,748
Potentially dilutive securities:
Employee stock options and unvested shares of restricted stock - 198,896
Weighted average common shares and common share equivalents
outstanding -- diluted 10,205,114 10,266,644
Average number of potentially dilutive securities excluded from calculation 421,472 59,950
Weighted average exercise price of excluded securities $2.56 $4.56

Effect of Recently Adopted Amendments to Authoritative Accounting Guidance

In June 2011, the FASB issued an amendment to disclosures about comprehensive income. Under the amendment, an entity has the option to present the
total of comprehensive income, the components of net income, and the components of other comprehensive income either in a single continuous statement
of comprehensive income or in two separate but consecutive statements. In both choices, an entity is required to present each component of net income
along with total net income, each component of other comprehensive income along with a total for other comprehensive income, and a total amount for
comprehensive income. This amendment eliminates the option to present the components of other comprehensive income as part of the statement of
changes in stockholders' equity. Reclassification adjustments between net income and other comprehensive income must be shown on the face of the
statement(s), with no resulting change in net earnings. The amendment does not change the items that must be reported in other comprehensive income or
when an item of other comprehensive income must be reclassified to net income. The amendment was effective for fiscal years beginning after December
15, 2011. The adoption of this amendment did not have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.

As discussed above under "Goodwill, Intangible and Long-Lived Assets," in September 2011, the FASB issued an amendment to existing guidance on the
assessment of goodwill impairment which provides an entity the option to first assess qualitative factors to determine whether it is necessary to perform
the current two-step test for goodwill impairment. If an entity believes, as a result of its qualitative assessment, that it is more-likely-than-not that the fair
value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount, the quantitative two-step impairment test is required. Otherwise, no further testing is required.
The update also amends the examples of events or circumstances that would be considered in a goodwill impairment evaluation. The amendment was
effective for annual and interim goodwill impairment tests performed for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2011. The adoption of this amendment
did not have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.
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inTEST CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Unaudited)

(3) ACQUISITION

On January 16, 2012, Temptronic acquired substantially all of the assets and certain liabilities of Thermonics pursuant to the Asset Purchase Agreement
dated December 9, 2011. Thermonics is engaged in the business of designing, manufacturing, selling and distributing temperature forcing systems used in
the testing of various products under temperature controlled situations. The acquisition of the Thermonics business broadens the product line of inTEST's
Thermal Products segment.

The purchase price for the assets was approximately $3,821 in cash, plus the assumption of specified liabilities, including trade payables and certain
customer contract obligations. We placed $400 of the purchase price in escrow to provide security for certain indemnification obligations set forth in the
acquisition agreement. In connection with this acquisition, we also signed a separate one year lease for the facility occupied by Thermonics in Sunnyvale,
California. This facility is owned by the seller. We ceased operations at this facility in February 2012 and relocated the Thermonics product line to our
facility in Mansfield, Massachusetts where our Temptronic operations are located. We recorded a restructuring charge in the first quarter of 2012 of $359
related to this action. See Note 5 for further detail regarding this charge.

Total acquisition costs incurred to complete this transaction were $485. The portion of these costs that was incurred in 2011 was $148. Acquisition costs
are expensed as incurred and included in general and administrative expense.

The Thermonics acquisition was accounted for as a purchase business combination and, accordingly, the results of Thermonics have been included in our
consolidated results of operations from the date of acquisition. The allocation of the total purchase price of Thermonics net tangible and identifiable
intangible assets was based on their estimated fair values as of the acquisition date. The tangible assets acquired include accounts receivable, inventory,
and property and equipment. Liabilities assumed include trade payables, certain customer contract obligations and accrued payments under a non-
compete/non-solicitation agreement with a former employee of Thermonics. Identifiable intangible assets acquired include customer relationships,
customer backlog, the Thermonics trade name, patented technology, and a non-compete/non-solicitation agreement with a former employee of
Thermonics. The excess of the purchase price over the identifiable intangible and net tangible assets in the amount of $179 was allocated to goodwill and
is deductible for tax purposes. Goodwill is attributed to the synergies that are expected to result from the operations of the combined businesses. The
determination of fair value reflects the assistance of third-party valuation specialists, as well as our own estimates and assumptions. The purchase price
allocation is preliminary pending the final determination of the fair value of certain acquired assets. We expect to complete this process by June 30, 2012.



The following represents the allocation of the purchase price:

Goodwill $ 179
Identifiable intangible assets 1,728

Tangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed:

Trade accounts receivable 1,161
Inventories 804
Property and equipment 223
Accounts payable 77)
Accrued non-compete/non-solicitation payments (48)
Accrued sales commissions (82)
Accrued warranty _(©7
Total purchase price $3,821

We estimated the fair value of identifiable intangible assets acquired using a combination of the income, cost and market approaches. We generally
amortize our finite-lived intangible assets over their estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis, unless an alternate amortization method can be reliably
determined. Any such alternate amortization method would be based on the pattern in which the economic benefits of the intangible asset are expected to

be consumed. The following table provides further information about the finite-lived intangible assets acquired in connection with the acquisition of
Thermonics as of the acquisition date:
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inTEST CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Unaudited)
(3) ACQUISITION (Continued)
Weighted
Average
Fair Estimated
Value Useful Life
(in months)
Customer relationships $1,110 72
Customer backlog 70 3
Thermonics trade name 140 48
Patented technology 360 132
Non-compete/non-solicitation agreement 48 18
Total intangible assets $1,728 78.3

For the period from January 16, 2012 to March 31, 2012, Thermonics contributed $669 of net revenues. We do not track net income within our Thermal
Products segment by product line. As a result, the net income for Thermonics for the period from January 16, 2012 to March 31, 2012 is not available.

The following unaudited pro forma information gives effect to the acquisition of Thermonics as if the acquisition occurred on January 1, 2011. These
proforma summaries do not reflect any operating efficiencies or costs savings that may be achieved by the combined businesses. These proforma
summaries are presented for informational purposes only and are not necessarily indicative of what the actual results of operations would have been had
the acquisition taken place as of that date, nor are they indicative of future consolidated results of operations:

Three Months Ended
March 31,
2012 2011
Net revenues $10,947 $13,070
Net earnings (loss) 545 417

Diluted earnings (loss) per share $0.05 $0.04



The proforma results for 2011 shown above include non-recurring charges totaling $696. Of this total, $337 represents transaction costs related to the
Thermonics acquisition and $359 represents facility closure costs related to the relocation of Thermonics operations.

(4) GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Goodwill

Goodwill on our balance sheets is a result of our acquisitions of Sigma Systems Corp. ("Sigma") in October 2008 and Thermonics in January 2012. The
acquisition of Thermonics is discussed further in Note 3. All of our goodwill is allocated to our Thermal Products segment. Changes in the amount of the
carrying value of goodwill for the three months ended March 31, 2012 are as follows:

Sigma Thermonics Total
Balance - January 1, 2012 $1,656 $ - $1,656
Acquisition of Thermonics - 179 179
Balance - March 31, 2012 $1,656 179 $1,835

Intangible Assets

As of March 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, we had finite-lived intangible assets on our balance sheets that are a result of our acquisitions of Sigma
Systems Corp. ("Sigma") in October 2008 and Thermonics in January 2012. The acquisition of Thermonics is discussed further in Note 3. At each of
March 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, we also had an indefinite-lived intangible asset which consists of a trademark. This asset is a result of our
acquisition of Sigma in October 2008.
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(49) GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

The following table provides further detail about our intangible assets as of March 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011:

March 31, 2012
Gross Net
Carrying  Accumulated Carrying
Amount  Amortization = Amount

Finite-lived intangible assets:

Customer relationships $1,480 $ 256 $1,224
Patented technology 590 169 421
Software 270 95 175
Trade name 140 8 132
Customer backlog 70 58 12
Non-compete/non-solicitation agreement __ 48 - 48
Total finite-lived intangible assets 2,598 _586 2,012

Indefinite-lived intangible assets:
Trademark 510 - 510

Total intangible assets $3,108 $ 586 $2,522

__December 31, 2011
Gross Net
Carrying  Accumulated Carrying
Amount  Amortization Amount

Finite-lived intangible assets:

Customer relationships $ 370 $ 200 $ 170
Patented technology 230 150 80
Software 270 88 182

Total finite-lived intangible assets 870 438 432




Indefinite-lived intangible assets:

Trademark 510 - 510
Total intangible assets $1380 $ 438 $§ 942

We generally amortize our finite-lived intangible assets over their estimated useful lives on a straightline basis, unless an alternate amortization method
can be reliably determined. Any such alternate amortization method would be based on the pattern in which the economic benefits of the intangible asset
are expected to be consumed. None of our intangible assets have any residual value. The following table provides further information about the estimated
useful lives of our finite-lived intangible assets as of March 31, 2012:

Remaining

Estimated
Estimated Useful Life at
Useful Life March 31, 2012

----(in months) - - - -

Finite-lived intangible assets resulting from the acquisition of Sigma:

Customer relationships 72 30
Software 120 78
Patented technology 60 18

Finite-lived intangible assets resulting from the acquisition of

Thermonics:
Customer relationships 72 69.5
Customer backlog 3 0.5
Trade name 48 45.5
Patented technology 132 129.5
Non-compete/non-solicitation agreement 18 18
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(4) GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

The following table sets forth changes in the amount of the carrying value of finite-lived intangible assets for the three months ended March 31, 2012:

Balance - January 1, 2012 $ 432
Acquisition of Thermonics 1,728
Amortization _(148)
Balance - March 31, 2012 $2,012

Total amortization expense for the three months ended March 31, 2012 and 2011 was $148 and $34, respectively. Total estimated amortization expense for
2012 is $476. The following table sets forth the estimated annual amortization expense for our finite-lived intangible assets for each of the next five years:

2013 $446
2014 $355
2015 $289
2016 $229
2017 $212

(5) RESTRUCTURING AND OTHER CHARGES

In connection with the acquisition of Thermonics, as discussed further in Note 3, we signed a separate one year lease for the facility in Sunnyvale,
California occupied by Thermonics at the time of the acquisition. This facility is owned by the seller. We ceased operations at this facility in February



2012 and relocated the Thermonics product line to our facility in Mansfield, Massachusetts where our Temptronic operations are located. During the first
quarter of 2012, we incurred approximately $359 of facility closure costs related to this action. These costs included lease termination fees of
approximately $220 and other costs associated with this consolidation of facilities, including the cost to relocate inventory and equipment, of
approximately $139. Accrued restructuring and other charges are included in Other Current Liabilities on our balance sheet.

Changes in our liability for restructuring and other charges for the three months ended March 31, 2012 are summarized as follows:

Thermonics
Relocation
Balance - January 1, 2012 $ -
Accruals for facility closure costs 359
Cash payments related to facility
closure costs (159)
Balance - March 31, 2012 $ 200

(6) MAJOR CUSTOMERS

During the three months ended March 31, 2012, Texas Instruments Incorporated accounted for 19% of our consolidated net revenues. While all three of
our operating segments sold products to this customer, these revenues were primarily generated by our Mechanical Products segment. During the three
months ended March 31, 2012, Teradyne, Inc. accounted for 13% of our consolidated net revenues. While both our Mechanical Products and our
Electrical Products segments sold products to this customer, these revenues were primarily generated by our Electrical Products segment. No other
customer accounted for 10% or more of our consolidated net revenues during the three months ended March 31, 2012. During the three months ended
March 31, 2011, no customer accounted for 10% or more of our consolidated net revenues.

(7) INVENTORIES
Inventories held at March 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 were comprised of the following:
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(7) INVENTORIES (Continued)

Mar. 31, Dec. 31,

—2012 2011
Raw materials $3,545  $2,784
Work in process 419 351
Inventory consigned to others 234 201
Finished goods _ 542 __ 560

$4,740  $3,896
(8) DEBT
Letters of Credit

At each of March 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, we had an outstanding letter of credit in the amount of $50. This letter of credit is secured by a
pledged certificate of deposit in the amount of $50. This letter of credit was originally issued in September 2004 as a portion of the security deposit under
a lease that we entered into for a facility for our Electrical Products operation based in northern California. This letter of credit expires September 13,
2012. The terms of the lease require that the letter of credit be renewed at least thirty days prior to its expiration date for successive terms of not less than
one year until June 30, 2012, which is sixty days after the expiration of the lease term.

At each of March 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, we had an outstanding letter of credit in the amount of $250. This letter of credit is secured by a
pledged certificate of deposit in the amount of $250. This letter of credit was originally issued in April 2010 as a security deposit under a lease that we
entered into for a facility in Mt. Laurel, New Jersey. Our Mechanical Products operation, which was located in Cherry Hill, New Jersey on December 31,
2010, relocated to this smaller facility in Mt. Laurel, New Jersey during the first quarter of 2011. This letter of credit expires April 1, 2013; however, the
terms of the lease require that the letter of credit be renewed at least thirty days prior to its expiration date for successive terms of not less than one year
throughout the entire lease term, which ends April 30, 2021. Provided that there is no event of default as defined under the terms and conditions of the
lease, the required amount of the letter of credit will decrease to $125 as of the sixty-fourth month of the term of the lease and to $90 as of the one-
hundredth month of the term of the lease.

At each of March 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, we had an outstanding letter of credit in the amount of $200. This letter of credit is secured by a
pledged certificate of deposit in the amount of $200. This letter of credit was originally issued in November 2010 as a security deposit under a lease that
we entered into for a facility in Mansfield, Massachusetts. Our Thermal Products operation, which was located in Sharon, Massachusetts on December 31,
2010, relocated to this facility in Mansfield, Massachusetts during the first quarter of 2011. This letter of credit expires November 7, 2012; however, the
terms of the lease require that the letter of credit be renewed at least thirty days prior to its expiration date for successive terms of not less than one year
throughout the entire lease term, which ends August 23, 2021. Provided that there is no event of default as defined under the terms and conditions of the



lease, the required amount of the letter of credit will decrease to $100 as of the thirty-seventh month of the term of the lease and to $50 as of the sixty-first
month of the term of the lease.

(99 LEASEHOLD IMPROVEMENTS AND DEFERRED RENT

We record tenant improvements made to our leased facilities based on the amount of the total cost to construct the improvements regardless of whether a
portion of that cost was paid through an allowance provided by the facility's landlord. The amount of the allowance, if any, is recorded as deferred rent.
We amortize deferred rent on a straight-line basis over the lease term and record the amortization as a reduction of rent expense. Amortization of deferred
rent for each of the three months ended March 31, 2012 and 2011 was $29.

(10) GUARANTEES

Product Warranties

Warranty expense for the three months ended March 31, 2012 and 2011 was $45 and $73, respectively. The following table sets forth the changes in the
liability for product warranties for the three months ended March 31, 2012:
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(10) GUARANTEES (Continued)

Balance - January 1, 2012 $214
Acquisition of Thermonics 67
Payments made under product warranty (41)
Accruals for product warranty _45
Balance - March 31, 2012 $285

(11) STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

As of March 31, 2012, we had outstanding stock options and unvested restricted stock awards granted under stock-based employee compensation plans
that are described more fully in Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements in our 2011 Form 10-K.

As of March 31, 2012, total compensation expense to be recognized in future periods was $204. The weighted average period over which this expense is
expected to be recognized is 1.9 years. All of this expense is related to nonvested shares of restricted stock.

Restricted Stock Awards
We record compensation expense for restricted stock awards (nonvested shares) based on the quoted market price of our stock at the grant date and

amortize the expense over the vesting period. Restricted stock awards generally vest over four years. The following table shows the allocation of the
compensation expense we recorded during the three months ended March 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively, related to nonvested shares:

Three Months Ended

March 31,

2012 2011

Cost of revenues $2 $3
Selling expense 2 5
Engineering and product development expense 6 13
General and administrative expense 17 27
$27 $ 48

There was no compensation expense capitalized in the three months ended March 31, 2012 or 2011.

The following table summarizes the activity related to nonvested shares for the three months ended March 31, 2012:

Weighted
Average
Number Grant Date
of Shares Fair Value
Nonvested shares outstanding, January 1, 2012 195,000 $1.62

Granted - -



Vested (60,000)  1.42

Forfeited

Nonvested shares outstanding, March 31, 2012 135,000 1.70

Stock Options

The following table summarizes the stock option activity for the three months ended March 31, 2012:
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Weighted
Number Average
of Shares Exercise Price
Options outstanding, January 1, 2012 (249,000 exercisable) 249,000 $ 3.28
Granted - -
Exercised - -
Forfeited/Expired (19,000) 3.61
Options outstanding, March 31, 2012 (230,000 exercisable) 230,000 3.26

(12) EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

We have a defined contribution 401(k) plan for our employees who work in the U.S. (the "inTEST 401(k) Plan"). All permanent employees of inTEST
Corporation and inTEST Silicon Valley Corp who are at least 18 years of age are eligible to participate in the plan. We match employee contributions
dollar for dollar up to 10% of the employee's annual compensation, with a maximum limit of $5. Employer contributions vest over four years. Matching
contributions are discretionary.

Temptronic adopted a defined contribution 401(k) plan for its domestic employees in 1988, that was merged into the inTEST 401(k) Plan effective
September 1, 2002. The inTEST 401(k) Plan retains the matching provisions of the prior Temptronic plan for all Temptronic employees. Temptronic
matches employee contributions $0.50 on the dollar up to 6% of the employees' annual compensation, with a maximum limit of $3. Matching
contributions are discretionary. The eligibility and vesting provisions of the prior Temptronic plan have been conformed to those for inTEST Corporation
and inTEST Silicon Valley Corporation employees.

In addition to the employer matching for which Temptronic employees are eligible, upon the termination of the Temptronic Equity Participation Plan
("EPP"), we also acknowledged that it was our intention to contribute $3,000 in the aggregate to the inTEST 401(k) Plan as a form of profit sharing (not
to exceed $300 per year) for the benefit of Temptronic employees. The amount of these contributions approximates the amount that we had been
committed to contribute to the EPP as of its termination date. All such profit sharing contributions are at the discretion of management, and will be
allocated to employees annually in the same manner in which the shares held by the EPP had been allocated. The vesting provisions for these
contributions are the same as those of the inTEST 401(k) Plan. Accruals for profit sharing contributions totaling $75 and $75 were made during the three
months ended March 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Through March 31, 2012, we had made a total of $1,928 in profit sharing contributions. We have
historically funded these contributions through the use of treasury shares during the quarter subsequent to the quarter in which we record the profit sharing
liability, although management has the discretion to use cash to fund these contributions. Our current intention is to use cash to fund these contributions
when our stock price is below $3.00 per share.

(13) SEGMENT INFORMATION

We have three reportable segments, which are also our reporting units: Thermal Products, Mechanical Products and Electrical Products.

The Thermal Products segment includes the operations of Temptronic Corporation, Thermonics (which we acquired in January 2012 as discussed further
in Note 3), Sigma Systems Corp., Temptronic GmbH (Germany), and inTEST Pte, Limited (Singapore). Sales of this segment consist primarily of
temperature management systems which we design, manufacture and market under our Temptronic, Thermonics and Sigma Systems product lines. In
addition, this segment provides post warranty service and support.

The Mechanical Products segment includes the operations of our Mt. Laurel, New Jersey manufacturing facility. Sales of our Mechanical Products
segment consist primarily of manipulator and docking hardware products, which we design, manufacture and market. In addition, this segment provides
post warranty service and support for various ATE equipment.

The Electrical Products segment includes the operations of inTEST Silicon Valley Corporation. Sales of this segment consist primarily of tester interface
products which we design, manufacture and market.
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(13) SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

We operate our business worldwide, and all three segments sell their products both domestically and internationally. All three segments sell to
semiconductor manufacturers, third-party test and assembly houses and ATE manufacturers. Our Thermal Products segment also sells into a variety of
industries outside of the semiconductor industry, including the automotive, consumer electronics, defense/aerospace and telecommunications industries.
Intercompany pricing between segments is either a multiple of cost for component parts or list price for finished goods.

Three Months Ended
March 31,
Net revenues from unadffiliated customers: 2012 2011
Thermal Products $ 6,111 $ 5,354
Mechanical Products 2,514 5,030
Electrical Products 2,116 1,346
Intersegment sales _ (109 __(206)

$10,731  $11,704

Intersegment sales:

Thermal Products $ - $ -

Mechanical Products 10 -

Electrical Products _- 26
$10 $26

Earnings (loss) before income tax expense (benefit):

Thermal Products $ 317 $ 763

Mechanical Products (552) 521

Electrical Products 365 155

Corporate —(202) —-(122)

$ (7)) 81317

Net earnings (loss):

Thermal Products $ 235 $ 745
Mechanical Products (345) 473
Electrical Products 233 150
Corporate _(166) _(111)

$ (43 $1.257

Mar. 31, Dec. 31,
2012 2011
Identifiable assets:
Thermal Products $20,585  $20,030
Mechanical Products 7,459 8,240
Electrical Products 3,824 2,967

$31,868  $31,237

The following table provides information about our geographic areas of operation. Net revenues from unaffiliated customers are based on the location to
which the goods are shipped.

Three Months Ended
March 31,
2012 2011




Net revenues from undffiliated customers:
U.S. $ 4196 $ 4,227

Foreign _ 6,535 7,477
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Mar. 31, Dec. 31,
2012 2011

Long-lived assets:

u.s. $1,010 $ 836

Foreign 226 298

$1,236  $1,134

inTEST CORPORATION
Item 2. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Risk Factors and Forward-Looking Statements

In addition to historical information, this discussion and analysis contains statements relating to possible future events and results that are considered
"forward-looking statements" within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These statements can often be identified by the
use of forward-looking terminology such as "believes," "expects," "intends," "may," "will," "should" or "anticipates" or similar terminology. See Part I,
Item 1 - "Business - Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Statements" in our 2011 Form 10-K for examples of statements made in this
report which may be "forward-looking statements." These statements involve risks and uncertainties and are based on various assumptions. Although we
believe that our expectations are based on reasonable assumptions, investors and prospective investors are cautioned that such statements are only
projections, and there cannot be any assurance that these events or results will occur.

"o

Information about the primary risks and uncertainties that could cause our actual future results to differ materially from our historic results or the results
described in the forward-looking statements made in this report or presented elsewhere by Management from time to time are included in Part I, Item 1A -
"Risk Factors" in our 2011 Form 10-K. Material changes to such risk factors may be reported in subsequent Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q in Part II,
Item 1A. There have been no such changes from the risk factors set forth in our 2011 Form 10-K.

Overview
This MD&A should be read in conjunction with the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Our business and results of operations are substantially dependent upon the demand for ATE by semiconductor manufacturers and companies that
specialize in the testing of ICs. Demand for ATE is driven by semiconductor manufacturers that are opening new, or expanding existing, semiconductor
fabrication facilities or upgrading existing equipment, which in turn is dependent upon the current and anticipated market demand for semiconductors and
products incorporating semiconductors. In the past, the semiconductor industry has been highly cyclical with recurring periods of oversupply, which often
have a severe impact on the semiconductor industry's demand for ATE, including the products we manufacture. This can cause wide fluctuations in both
our orders and net revenues and, depending on our ability to react quickly to these shifts in demand, can significantly impact our results of operations.
These industry cycles are difficult to predict and in recent years have become more volatile and, in certain cases, shorter in duration. Because the industry
cycles are generally characterized by sequential periods of growth or declines in orders and net revenues during each cycle, year over year comparisons of
operating results may not always be as meaningful as comparisons of periods at similar points in either up or down cycles. In addition, during both
downward and upward cycles in our industry, in any given quarter, the trend in both our orders and net revenues can be erratic. This can occur, for
example, when orders are canceled or currently scheduled delivery dates are accelerated or postponed by a significant customer or when customer
forecasts and general business conditions fluctuate during a quarter.

We believe that purchases of most of our products are typically made from semiconductor manufacturers' capital expenditure budgets. Certain portions of
our business, however, are generally less dependent upon the capital expenditure budgets of the end users. For example, purchases of certain related ATE
interface products, such as sockets and interface boards, which must
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be replaced periodically, are typically made from the end users' operating budgets. In addition, purchases of certain of our products, such as docking
hardware, for the purpose of upgrading or improving the utilization, performance and efficiency of existing ATE, tend to be counter cyclical to sales of
new ATE. Moreover, we believe a portion of our sales of thermal products results from the increasing need for temperature testing of circuit boards and



specialized components that do not have the design or quantity to be tested in an electronic device handler. In addition, we market our Thermostream
temperature management systems in industries outside semiconductor test, such as the automotive, consumer electronics, defense/aerospace and
telecommunications industries. We believe that these industries usually are less cyclical than the ATE industry.

While the majority of our orders and net revenues are derived from the ATE market, our operating results do not always follow the overall trend in the
ATE market in any given period. We believe that these anomalies may be driven by a variety of changes within the ATE market, including, for example,
changing product requirements, longer time periods between new product offerings by OEMs and changes in customer buying patterns. In particular,
demand for our mechanical and electrical products, which are sold exclusively within the ATE industry, and our operating margins in these product
segments have been affected by shifts in the competitive landscape, including (i) customers placing heightened emphasis on shorter lead times (which
places increased demands on our available engineering and production capacity increasing unit costs) and ordering in smaller quantities (which prevents
us from acquiring component materials in larger volumes at lower cost and increasing unit costs), (ii) the practice of OEM manufacturers to specify other
suppliers as primary vendors, with less frequent opportunities to compete for such designations, (iii) the role of third-party test and assembly houses in the
ATE market and their requirement of products with a greater range of use at the lowest cost, and (iv) customer supply line management groups demanding
lower prices and spreading purchases across multiple vendors. These shifts in market practices have had, and may continue to have, varying levels of
impact on our operating results, which are difficult to quantify or predict from period to period. Management has taken, and will continue to take, such
actions it deems appropriate to adjust our strategies, products and operations to counter such shifts in market practices as they become evident.

Net Revenues and Orders

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, a breakdown of the net revenues from unaffiliated customers both by product segment and
geographic area (based on the location to which the goods are shipped).

Three Months Ended
Mar. 31, Dec. 31,
2012 2011 2011

Net revenues from unadffiliated customers (in thousands)
Thermal Products $ 6111 $ 5354 $ 7,349
Mechanical Products 2,514 5,030 1,909
Electrical Products 2,116 1,346 824
Intersegment sales (1 _ @26 @O

$10,731  $11,704 $10,081

Intersegment sales
Thermal Products $ - $ - $ -
Mecahnical Products 10 - -

Electrical Products

Net revenues from undffiliated customers (net of intersegment sales)

Thermal Products $ 6,111 $ 5,354 $ 7,349
Mechanical Products 2,504 5,030 1,909
Electrical Products _211 1,320 823
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Net revenues from undffiliated customers

U.S. $ 4196 $ 4,227 $ 5,345
Foreign _6,535 _7,477 _4,736
$10,731  $11,704 $10,081
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Our consolidated net revenues for the quarter ended March 31, 2012 decreased $973,000 or 8% as compared to the same period in 2011. For the quarter
ended March 31, 2012, net revenues (net of intersegment sales) of our Mechanical Products segment decreased $2.5 million or 50%, while the net



revenues (net of intersegment sales) of our Thermal and Electrical Products segments increased $757,000 or 14% and $796,000 or 60%, respectively, as
compared to the same period in 2011. During the quarter ended March 31, 2012, the net revenues of our Thermal Products segment included $669,000 of
net revenues attributable to Thermonics, Inc. ("Thermonics"), which we acquired on January 16, 2012 as discussed further under "Acquisition" below.
Adjusted to eliminate the impact of the net revenues attributable to Thermonics, the net revenues (net of intersegment sales) of our Thermal Products
segment for the first quarter of 2012 would have increased $88,000 or 2% as compared to the same period in 2011. Net revenues from customers in
various industries outside of the ATE industry and those net revenues as a percentage of our total consolidated net revenues were $2.4 million or 22%,
respectively, for the quarter ended March 31, 2012, compared to $4.0 million or 40%, respectively, for the quarter ended December 31, 2011, and $2.3
million or 20%, respectively, for the quarter ended March 31, 2011. Adjusted to eliminate the impact of the net revenues attributable to Thermonics, the
net revenues from customers in various industries outside of the ATE industry and those net revenues as a percentage of our total consolidated net
revenues were $2.4 million or 23%.

During the first quarter of 2012, the level of demand experienced by our Mechanical Products segment was less than that experienced during the same
period in 2011. We believe the decrease in the level of net revenues in our Mechanical Products segment reflects reduced demand within the ATE industry,
which we had begun to see reflected in the level of our orders for this segment during the second quarter of 2011. This decline in demand was partially
offset by increased demand from one particular major customer that had recently completed an acquisition and, as a result, had higher than typical demand
for certain of our equipment as a part of the process of integrating their post-acquisition operations. This same major customer also purchases products
from our Electrical Products segment and we believe this also is responsible for a portion of the increase in the net revenues of our Electrical Products
segment during the first quarter of 2012 as compared to the same period in 2011. We also attribute the increase in the net revenues of our Electrical
Products segment to a significant increase in demand from one particular major OEM customer.

We believe the relatively unchanged level of net revenues of our Thermal Products segment (when adjusted to eliminate the impact of the acquisition of
Thermonics) primarily reflects that this segment has historically lagged our other two product segments in regard to experiencing the impact of both
increases and decreases in the levels of demand within the ATE industry. In addition, approximately 40-60% of this segment's sales are to customers in
various industries outside the ATE industry where we have experienced recent strength in demand.

Total orders for the quarter ended March 31, 2012 were $12.9 million compared to $8.1 million for the quarter ended December 31, 2011 and $13.1
million for the quarter ended March 31, 2011. Orders for the first quarter of 2012 include $553,000 attributable to Thermonics. For the quarter ended
March 31, 2012, orders for our Thermal, Mechanical and Electrical Products segments were $5.3 million, $3.8 million and $3.8 million, respectively,
compared to $6.1 million, $1.1 million and $864,000 for the quarter ended December 31, 2011, respectively, and $5.8 million, $5.6 million and $1.7
million for the quarter ended March 31, 2011, respectively. Orders from customers in various industries outside of the ATE industry and those orders as a
percentage of our total consolidated orders were $1.7 million or 13%, respectively, for the quarter ended March 31, 2012, compared to $3.1 million or
38%, respectively, for the quarter ended December 31, 2011, and $2.3 million or 17%, respectively, for the quarter ended March 31, 2011.We cannot be
certain what the level of our orders or net revenues will be in any future period for any of our product segments.

Backlog

At March 31, 2012, our backlog of unfilled orders for all products was approximately $7.0 million, of which approximately $674,000 is attributable to
Thermonics, compared with approximately $4.0 million at December 31, 2011 and $7.5 million at March 31, 2011. Our backlog includes customer orders
which we have accepted, substantially all of which we expect to deliver in 2012. While backlog is calculated on the basis of firm purchase orders, a
customer may cancel an order or accelerate or postpone currently scheduled delivery dates. Our backlog may be affected by the tendency of customers to
rely on short lead times available from suppliers, including us, in periods of depressed demand. In periods of increased demand, there is a tendency
towards longer lead times that has the effect of increasing backlog. As a result, our backlog at a particular date is not necessarily indicative of sales for any
future period.
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Restructuring and Other Charges

In connection with the acquisition of Thermonics, as discussed further in Note 3 to our consolidated financial statements, we signed a separate one year
lease for the Sunnyvale, California facility occupied by Thermonics at the time of the acquisition. This facility is owned by the seller. We ceased
operations at this facility in February 2012 and relocated the Thermonics product line to our facility in Mansfield, Massachusetts where our Temptronic
operations are located. During the first quarter of 2012, we incurred approximately $359,000 of facility closure costs related to this action. These costs
included lease termination fees of approximately $220,000 and other costs associated with this consolidation of facilities, including the cost to relocate
inventory and equipment, of approximately $139,000. Accrued restructuring and other charges are included in Other Current Liabilities on our balance
sheet.

Acquisition

On January 16, 2012, Temptronic Corporation acquired substantially all of the assets and certain liabilities of Thermonics, a division of Test Enterprises,
Inc., pursuant to the Asset Purchase Agreement dated December 9, 2011. Thermonics is engaged in the business of designing, manufacturing, selling and
distributing temperature forcing systems used in the testing of various products under temperature controlled situations. The acquisition of the Thermonics
business broadens the product line of inTEST's Thermal Products segment. The purchase price for the assets was approximately $3.8 million in cash, plus
the assumption of specified liabilities. For further discussion of the acquisition, see Note 3 to our consolidated financial statements.

Product/Customer Mix

Our three product segments each have multiple products that we design, manufacture and sell to our customers. The gross margin on each product we
offer is affected by a number of factors including the amount of intellectual property (such as patented technology) utilized in the product, the number of
units ordered by the customer at one time, or the amount of inTEST designed and fabricated material included in our product compared with the amount
of third-party designed and fabricated material included in our product. The weight of each of these factors, as well as the current market conditions,
determines the ultimate sales price we can obtain for our products and the resulting gross margin.



The mix of products we sell in any period is ultimately determined by our customers' needs. Therefore, the mix of products sold in any given period can
change significantly from the prior period. As a result, our consolidated gross margin can be significantly impacted in any given period by a change in the
mix of products sold in that period.

We sell most of our products to semiconductor manufacturers and third-party test and assembly houses (end user sales) and to ATE manufacturers (OEM
sales) who ultimately resell our equipment with theirs to semiconductor manufacturers. Our Thermal Products segment also sells into a variety of other
industries including the automotive, consumer electronics, defense/aerospace and telecommunications industries. The mix of customers during any given
period will affect our gross margin due to differing sales discounts and commissions. For the quarters ended March 31, 2012 and 2011, our OEM sales as
a percentage of net revenues were 15% and 14%, respectively.

OEM sales generally have a lower gross margin than end user sales, as OEM sales historically have had a more significant discount. Our current net
operating margins on most OEM sales, however, are only slightly less than margins on end user sales because of the payment of third party sales
commissions on most end user sales. We have also continued to experience demands from our OEM customers' supply line managers to reduce our sales
prices to them. If we cannot further reduce our manufacturing and operating costs, these pricing pressures will continue to reduce our gross and operating
margins.

Results of Operations

All of our products are used by semiconductor manufacturers in conjunction with ATE in the testing of ICs. In addition, some of the products
manufactured by our Thermal Products segment are used in industries outside of the semiconductor industry, including the automotive, consumer
electronics, defense/aerospace and telecommunications industries. The results of operations for each product segment are generally affected by the same
factors. Separate discussions and analyses for each product segment would be repetitive and obscure any unique factors that affected the results of
operations of our different product segments. The discussion and analysis that follows, therefore, is presented on a consolidated basis and includes
discussion of factors unique to each product segment where significant to an understanding of that segment.
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The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the principal items included in the Consolidated Statements of Operations as a percentage of total
net revenues.

Percentage of Net Revenues
Quarters Ended March 31,

2012 2011
Net revenues 100.0% 100.0%
Cost of revenues _57.2 _56.5
Gross margin _42.8 _43.5
Selling expense 13.1 11.8
Engineering and product development expense 8.6 6.9
General and administrative expense 18.6 14.0
Restructuring and other charges _33 _0.0
Operating income (loss) (0.8) 10.8
Other income _ 0.1 _0.5
Earnings (loss) before income tax expense (benefit) 0.7) 11.3
Income tax expense (benefit) _(0.3) _0.5
Net earnings (loss) _(0.)% 10.8%

Quarter Ended March 31, 2012 Compared to Quarter Ended March 31, 2011

Net Revenues. Net revenues were $10.7 million for the quarter ended March 31, 2012 compared to $11.7 million for the same period in 2011, a decrease
of $973,000 or 8%. We believe the decrease in our net revenues during the first quarter of 2012 primarily reflects the factors previously discussed in the
Overview.

During the quarter ended March 31, 2012, our net revenues from customers in the U.S. decreased 1% and our net revenues from foreign customers
decreased 13%, respectively, as compared to the same period in 2011. The impact of changes in foreign currency exchange rates on the increase in net
revenues from foreign customers was less than 1%.

Gross Margin. Gross margin was 43% for the first quarter of 2012 compared to 44% for the same period in 2011. The decrease in gross margin primarily
reflects that our fixed operating costs were not as fully absorbed due to the lower net revenues levels during the first quarter of 2012 as compared to the
same period in 2011. While our fixed operating costs declined $65,000 in absolute dollar terms during the quarter ended March 31, 2012 as compared to



the same period in 2011, as a percentage of net revenues these costs increased from 16% for the quarter ended March 31, 2011 to 17% for the quarter
ended March 31, 2012. The decline in the absolute dollar value of our fixed operating costs in the first quarter of 2012 as compared to the same period in
2011 primarily represents that the first quarter of 2011 had $74,000 of costs associated with the relocation of two of our domestic manufacturing
operations during this period. There were no similar costs in the first quarter of 2012. To a lesser extent, we also attribute the decrease in our gross margin
during the first quarter of 2012 as compared to the same period in 2011 to an increase in our charges for obsolete and excess inventory. These charges
increased $63,000 in the first quarter of 2012 as compared to the same period in 2011, reflecting more items falling into our standard objective criteria
primarily as a result of changes in demand for certain products made by our Mechanical and Electrical Products segments. These increases were partially
offset by a slight decline in component material costs as a percentage of net revenues, reflecting changes in product and customer mix.

Selling Expense. Selling expense was $1.4 million in each of the quarters ended March 31, 2012 and 2011. Increases in third-party consulting fees and
salary and benefits expense were offset by a decrease in commissions, reflecting the lower net revenue levels, and lower levels of accruals for product
warranty expense.

Engineering and Product Development Expense. Engineering and product development expense was $924,000 for the first quarter of 2012 compared to
$813,000 for the same period in 2011, an increase of $111,000 or 14%. The increase in engineering and product development expense primarily reflects
higher salary and benefits expense and an increase in the use of third-party consultants.

General and Administrative Expense. General and administrative expense was $2.0 million for the first quarter of 2012 compared to $1.6 million for the
same period in 2011, an increase of $357,000 or 22%. During the first quarter of 2012, we
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recorded $337,000 in costs associated with the acquisition of Thermonics. There were no similar costs recorded in the first quarter of 2011. In addition,
amortization expense related to our intangible assets increased $114,000 during the first quarter of 2012 as compared to the same period in 2011. This
amount represents amortization of the intangible assets acquired as a part of the Thermonics transaction completed on January 16, 2012. These increases
were partially offset by a decrease in accruals for profit-related bonuses reflecting the loss recorded for the first quarter of 2012 as compared to earnings
recorded for the first quarter of 2011.

Restructuring and Other Charges. Restructuring and other charges were $359,000 for the first quarter of 2012. There were no similar charges for the first
quarter of 2011. The restructuring and other charges recorded during the first quarter of 2012 represent facility closure costs related to the closure of the
Sunnyvale, California facility occupied by Thermonics at the time of our acquisition of this operation, as discussed further in the Overview.

Other Income. Other income was $13,000 for the first quarter of 2012 compared to $56,000 for the first quarter of 2011, a decrease of $43,000. During the
first quarter of 2011, we recorded a gain on sale of property and equipment. There was no similar gain recorded during the first quarter of 2012.

Income Tax Expense (Benefit). For the quarter ended March 31, 2012, we recorded an income tax benefit of $28,000 compared to income tax expense of
$60,000 for the same period in 2011. On a quarterly basis, we record income tax expense or benefit based on the expected annualized effective tax rate for
the various taxing jurisdictions in which we operate our businesses. During the past several years, due to our history of operating losses in both our
domestic and certain of our foreign operations, we had recorded a full valuation allowance against the deferred tax assets of these operations, including
net operating loss carryforwards, where we believed it was more likely than not that we would not have sufficient taxable income to utilize these assets
before they expire. During the third and fourth quarters of 2011, we reversed $3.1 million of the valuation allowance which had been recorded against the
deferred tax assets of these operations. The reversal of this amount of the valuation allowance was based on our current assessment that it is now more
likely than not that we will be able to fully utilize these assets in the near future. Some of the key factors we considered in making our assessment
included our profitability in both 2011 and 2010 and our level of certainty with regard to our forecasts of near term future profitability for the operations
to which these assets relate.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Net cash used in operations for the three months ended March 31, 2012 was $67,000 compared to $1.2 million for the same period in 2011. The decrease
in net cash used in operations primarily reflects a lower level of increase in the amount of trade accounts receivable and inventories during the first quarter
of 2012 as compared to the same period in 2011. This was partially offset by a net loss of $43,000 in the first quarter of 2012 compared to net earnings
$1.3 million for the same period in 2011. During the first quarter of 2012, trade accounts receivable increased $574,000 and inventories increased $37,000
compared to increases of $2.6 million and $504,000, respectively, during the same period in 2011. The lower level of increase primarily reflects that the
level of increase in business activity in the first quarter of 2011 as compared to the fourth quarter of 2010 was much more significant than the level of
increase in business activity during the first quarter of 2012 as compared to the fourth quarter of 2011. During the first quarter of 2012, accounts payable
increased $833,000 compared to an increase of $653,000 during the comparable period in 2011. Accrued wages and benefits decreased $576,000 during
the first quarter of 2012 compared to a decrease of $492,000 during the same period in 2011. The decreases in accrued wages and benefits during the first
quarter of both 2012 and 2011 primarily represent the payout of profit related bonuses accrued on the prior year's results. Other current liabilities
increased $196,000 during the first quarter of 2012 compared to a decrease of $150,000 during the same period in 2011. The increase in 2012 primarily
reflects the accrual of restructuring charges related to the closure of the former Thermonics facility.

During the first quarter of 2012, we paid $3.8 million to acquire Thermonics, as discussed further in the Overview and in Note 3 to our consolidated
financial statements. We have no significant commitments for capital expenditures for the balance of 2012, however, depending upon changes in market
demand, we may make such purchases as we deem necessary and appropriate.

As of March 31, 2012, we had cash and cash equivalents of $10.1 million. We currently expect our cash and cash equivalents and projected future cash
flow to be sufficient to support our short term working capital requirements. We do not currently have any available credit facilities under which we can
borrow to help fund our working capital requirements. We cannot be certain that, if needed, we would be able to obtain any credit facilities or under what
terms such credit facilities would be available.
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New or Recently Adopted Accounting Standards

See the Notes to the consolidated financial statements for information concerning the implementation and impact of new or recently adopted accounting
standards.

Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires
us to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses and related disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities. On an on-going basis, we evaluate our estimates, including those related to inventories, long-lived assets, goodwill, identifiable intangibles,
deferred income tax valuation allowances and product warranty reserves. We base our estimates on historical experience and on appropriate and
customary assumptions that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Some of these accounting estimates and assumptions are
particularly sensitive because of their significance to our consolidated financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them
may differ markedly from what had been assumed when the financial statements were prepared. As of March 31, 2012, there have been no significant
changes to the accounting policies that we have deemed critical. These policies are more fully described in our 2011 Form 10-K.

Off -Balance Sheet Arrangements

There were no off-balance sheet arrangements during the three months ended March 31, 2012 that have or are reasonably likely to have, a current or
future effect on our financial condition, changes in financial condition, revenues or expenses, results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures or
capital resources that is material to our interests.

Item 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
This disclosure is not required for a smaller reporting company.
Item 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

CEO and CFO Certifications. Included with this Quarterly Report as Exhibits 31.1 and 31.2 are two certifications, one by each of our Chief Executive
Officer and our Chief Financial Officer (the "Section 302 Certifications"). This Item 4 contains information concerning the evaluations of our disclosure
controls and procedures that are referred to in the Section 302 Certifications. This information should be read in conjunction with the Section 302
Certifications for a more complete understanding of the topics addressed therein.

Evaluation of Our Disclosure Controls and Procedures. The SEC requires that as of the end of the quarter covered by this Report, our CEO and CFO
must evaluate the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures and report on the effectiveness of the design and
operation of our disclosure controls and procedures.

"Disclosure controls and procedures" mean the controls and other procedures that are designed with the objective of ensuring that information required to
be disclosed in our reports filed under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Exchange Act"), such as this Report, is recorded, processed, summarized
and reported within the time periods specified in the rules and forms promulgated by the SEC. Disclosure controls and procedures are also designed with
the objective of ensuring that such information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including the CEO and CFO, as appropriate, to
allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Limitations on the Effectiveness of Controls. Our management, including the CEO and CFO, does not expect that our disclosure controls and
procedures or our internal control over financial reporting will prevent all error and all fraud. A control system, no matter how well conceived and
operated, can provide only reasonable, as opposed to absolute, assurance that the objectives of the control system are met. Further, the design of a control
system must reflect the fact that there are resource constraints, and the benefits of controls must be considered relative to their costs. Because of the
inherent limitations in all
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control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, within an entity have been
detected. These inherent limitations include the realities that judgments in decision-making can be faulty, and that breakdowns can occur because of
simple error or mistake. Additionally, controls can be circumvented by the individual acts of some persons, by collusion of two or more people, or by
management override of the control. The design of any system of controls also is based in part upon certain assumptions about the likelihood of future
events, and there can be no assurance that any design will succeed in achieving its stated goals under all potential future conditions; over time, a system of
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. Because
of the inherent limitations in a cost-effective control system, misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Accordingly, our
management has designed the disclosure controls and procedures to provide reasonable assurance that the objectives of the control system were met.

CEO/CFO Conclusions about the Effectiveness of the Disclosure Controls and Procedures. As required by Rule 13a-15(b), inTEST management,
including our CEO and CFO, conducted an evaluation as of the end of the period covered by this Report, of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls

and procedures. Based on that evaluation, our CEO and CFO concluded that, as of the end of the period covered by this Report, our disclosure controls
and procedures were effective at the reasonable assurance level.

PART II. OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings



From time to time we may be a party to legal proceedings occurring in the ordinary course of business. We are not currently involved in any material legal
proceedings.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

Information regarding the primary risks and uncertainties that could materially and adversely affect our future performance or could cause actual results to
differ materially from those expressed or implied in our forward-looking statements, appears in Part I, Item 1A -- "Risk Factors" of our Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011.

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds

None

Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities

None

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

None

Item 5. Other Information

None

Item 6. Exhibits

A list of the Exhibits which are required by Item 601 of Regulation S-K and filed with this Report is set forth in the Index to Exhibits immediately
following the signature page, which Index to Exhibits is incorporated herein by reference.
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Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned
thereunto duly authorized.

inTEST Corporation
Date: May 15, 2012 /s/ Robert E. Matthiessen
Robert E. Matthiessen
President and Chief Executive Officer
Date: May 15,2012 /s/ Hugh T. Regan, Jr.
Hugh T. Regan, Jr.
Secretary, Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer
Index to Exhibits
3.1* Articles of Incorporation: Previously filed by the Company as an Exhibit

3.2%

10.1

10.2

31.1

31.2

32.1

to the Company's Registration Statement on Form S-1, File No. 333-26457,
and incorporated herein by reference.

ByLaws of inTEST Corporation, as amended on October 30, 2007: Previously filed
as Exhibit 3.2 of the Company's Form 8-K on November 5, 2007 and incorporated

herein by reference.

Lease Agreement between Columbia California Warm Springs Industrial, LLC and inTEST Silicon Valley Corporation
dated January 9, 2012.

Guaranty Agreement between Columbia California Warm Springs Industrial, LLC and inTEST Corporation dated
January 9, 2012.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a).
Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a).

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.



32.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

* Indicates document previously filed.
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STANDARD INDUSTRIAL LEASE AGREEMENT
Between
COLUMBIA CALIFORNIA WARM SPRINGS INDUSTRIAL, LLC
a Delaware limited liability company

as Landlord

and

INTEST SILICON VALLEY CORPORATION,

a Delaware corporation

as Tenant

Premises Location: 47777 Warm Springs Boulevard

Fremont, California 94539
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STANDARD INDUSTRIAL LEASE AGREEMENT

THIS STANDARD INDUSTRIAL LEASE AGREEMENT (this "Lease"), dated as of January 9, 2012, is made and entered into by and between
COLUMBIA CALIFORNIA WARM SPRINGS INDUSTRIAL, LL.C, a Delaware limited liability company, hereinafter referred to as "Landlord," and
INTEST SILICON VALLEY CORPORATION, a Delaware corporation, hereinafter referred to as "Tenant."

BASIC LEASE PROVISIONS

1 Landlord: COLUMBIA CALIFORNIA WARM SPRINGS INDUSTRIAL,
Address (for notices) (SS 22.21): LLC



10

1

12

13

14

Address (for Rent)::

Tenant:
Address (for notices) (SS 22.21):

Area of Premises (SS 1.1):

Building Address (SS 1.1):

Commencement Date (SS 1.2):
Term (SS 1.2):
Rent Commencement Date (SS 2.1):

Monthly Base Rent (SS 2.1):

Seventh Month's Base Rent (SS 2.1):

Security Deposit (SS 2.2):

Tenant's Proportionate Share (SS 2.3):

Use of Premises (SS 3.1):

Parking (SS 3.3):

Tenant's Liability Insurance Amount (SS 12.3.1):

c/o Lincoln Property Company
601 California Street, 4th floor
San Francisco, CA 94108

With a copy to

Lincoln GP Advisory Group, Inc.
120 North LaSalle Street, Suite 1750
Chicago, IL 60602

Attn. Gary Kobus

All Rent shall be sent to:

COLUMBIA CALIFORNIA WARM SPRINGS
INDUSTRIAL, LL.C

P.O. Box 848138-55

Dallas, TX 75284-8138

inTEST Silicon Valley Corporation
47777 Warm Springs Boulevard
Fremont, California 94539

Approximately 15,746 rentable square feet

47777 Warm Springs Boulevard
Fremont, California 94539

April 1, 2012.
Sixty-six (66) full calendar months from the Commencement Date.
Same as Commencement Date.

*Months 1-6 $0.00
Months 7-12 $8,660.30
Months 13-24 $8,920.11
Months 25-36 $9,187.71
Months 37-48 $9,463.34
Months 49-60 $9,747.24
Months 61-66 $10,039.66

*Notwithstanding that no Base Rent is due for the first six (6) months of
the Term (the "Rent Abatement"): (i) Tenant shall be obligated to pay
any and all Additional Rent applicable to such period, and (ii) in the
event Tenant commits an Event of Default at any time during the Term
hereof, Tenant shall be obligated to immediately pay to Landlord the
Rent Abatement set forth above, which amount equals $51,961.80.

Base Rent $ 8,660.30
Taxes, Insurance and
Operating Expenses

$ 2,834.28
Total

$11,494.58
$12,873.94

For expenses related solely to the Building:
44.67% (15,746/35,234)

For expenses related to the entire Project:
9.45% (15,746/166,709)

1

Light manufacturing, research and development and
related office uses incidental thereto.

Tenant shall be entitled to use, on a non-exclusive basis,
Tenant's Proportionate Share (as it relates to the
Building) of the total parking spaces serving the
Building.

$1,000,000 per occurrence, $2,000,000 general
aggregate; with an umbrella policy of at least
$5,000,000



15  Broker(s) (SS 22.24): Tenant's: Colliers International
Landlord's: Colliers International

16  Guaranty: To induce Landlord to execute this Lease, inTEST Corporation ("Guarantor"), shall deliver to Landlord,
in the form attached as Exhibit E hereto, its guaranty of the Tenant's obligations under this Lease. If Guarantor fails to
deliver such guaranty to Landlord simultaneously with the delivery of this Lease to Landlord as executed by Tenant,
Tenant shall have no rights or interests in the Premises or under this Lease. It shall be an automatic default under
Paragraph 18 of this Lease if any of the events enumerated in Paragraph 18.4 of this Lease shall happen to Guarantor
or any other guarantor of Tenant's obligations under this Lease.

The paragraphs of the Lease identified above in parentheses are those provisions where references to particular items
from the Basic Lease Provisions appear, and such items are incorporated into the Lease as part thereof. In the event of
any conflict between any Basic Lease Provision and the Lease, the former shall control.

1. PREMISES AND TERMS.

1.1. Lease and Premises. Landlord leases to Tenant, and Tenant hires from Landlord, certain premises (the "Premises") described in, and consisting of the
stipulated rentable area shown in, Item 3 of the Basic Lease Provisions within a building (the "Building") described in Item 4 of the Basic Lease Provisions. The
location of the Building and Premises are shown on the site plan attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein. The "Project" shall refer to the land shown
on the site plan (the "Land") together with such additions and deletions to the Land as Landlord may from time to time designate, plus all buildings and
improvements located thereon. Landlord and Tenant hereby agree that the rentable square footage of the Premises set forth in Item 3 of the Basic Lease
Provisions shall be conclusive and binding on the parties.

1.2.  Term. The term of this Lease shall commence on the "Commencement Date" specified in or established pursuant to Item 5 of the Basic Lease
Provisions, and except as otherwise provided herein, shall continue in full force and effect through the number of months provided in Item 6 of the Basic Lease
Provisions (the "Term"), provided, however, that if the Commencement Date is a date other than the first day of a calendar month, the Term shall consist of the
remainder of the calendar month including and following the Commencement Date, plus said number of full calendar months.

1.3. Renewal. Tenant shall have the option to extend the Term for one (1) additional period of five (5) years (the "Renewal Option"), under and subject to
the following terms and conditions:

1.3.1 The renewal term (the "Renewal Term") shall be for a five (5) year period commencing on the day immediately following the expiration date of
the initial Term and expiring at midnight on the day immediately preceding the fifth (51 anniversary thereof.

1.3.2 Tenant must exercise each Renewal Option, if at all, by written notice to Landlord delivered no earlier than twelve (12) months prior to the
expiration of the initial Term and no later than nine (9) months prior to the expiration of the initial Term, time being of the essence.

1.3.3 As a condition to Tenant's exercise of the Renewal Option, at the time Tenant delivers its notice of election to exercise the Renewal Option to
Landlord, this Lease shall be in full force and effect, Tenant shall not have assigned this Lease or sublet the Premises, and Tenant shall not be in default in the
performance of any of its obligations hereunder.

1.3.4 The Renewal Term shall be on the same terms and conditions contained in this Lease, except that (i) the Base Rent shall be the "Fair Market
Rental Rate" (as hereinafter defined) for the Premises, and (ii) Tenant shall not be entitled to any allowances or other concessions with respect to the Renewal
Term, unless otherwise agreed to in writing by the parties hereto; provided, however, Landlord shall have no obligation to agree to any such allowances or
concessions.

1.3.5 Except for the specific Renewal Option set forth above, there shall be no further privilege of renewal.

1.3.6 As used herein, the term "Fair Market Rental Rate" shall mean the per square foot base rental rate, including annual escalations, then being
charged by Landlord for new leases for comparable space in the Building or, if no comparable space exists in the Building, then being charged by landlords for
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comparable space in industrial buildings in the trade area for leases commencing on or about the commencement of the Renewal Term, taking into consideration
the use, location and floor level of the applicable building, leasehold improvements provided, the term of the lease under consideration, the extent of services
provided thereunder and other adjustments to the base rental and any other relevant term or condition in making such evaluation, assuming, however, for purposes
of the foregoing analysis, that the Premises is fit for immediate use and occupancy in its "AS IS" condition and that no work is required to be done by Landlord
with respect thereto. Landlord shall determine the Fair Market Rental Rate using its good faith judgment and shall provide written notice of such rate within
fifteen (15) business days after Tenant's exercise notice pursuant to this Section. Tenant shall thereupon have the following options: (i) to accept such proposed
"Fair Market Rental Rate", or (ii) to decline to exercise the Renewal Option. Tenant must provide Landlord with written notification of its election within fifteen
(15) business days after Tenant's receipt of Landlord's notice, otherwise Tenant shall be deemed to have elected clause (ii) above, in which event Tenant shall be
deemed to have rescinded its exercise notice and this Lease shall expire on the expiration date of the initial Term, as if Tenant had not elected to exercise the
Renewal Option hereunder.

1.4. Condition of the Premises; Commencement Date.
1.4.1 Landlord's Work.

Landlord shall, at its sole cost and expense, perform the work set forth in Exhibit B attached hereto using Building standard materials and
specifications (the "Landlord's Work"). With the exception of Landlord's Work, Tenant acknowledges that it has inspected and accepts the Premises and the
Project in their present "as-is" condition as suitable for the purpose for which the Premises are leased. The taking of possession by Tenant shall be conclusive to
establish that the Premises are in good and satisfactory condition when possession is taken. With the exception of Landlord's Work, Tenant further acknowledges
that no representations or promises were made by Landlord or any agent of Landlord to repair, alter, remodel or improve the Premises, except as expressly set
forth in this Lease. Tenant accepts the Premises without warranty of any kind.



1.4.2 Commencement Date.

The Commencement Date shall be the date provided in Item 5 of the Basic Lease Provisions. If this Lease is executed before the Premises become
vacant or otherwise available or if any present tenant or occupant of the Premises holds over, and Landlord cannot acquire possession of the Premises in time to
deliver them by the Commencement Date, this Lease shall not be void or voidable, and Landlord shall not be deemed to be in default hereunder, nor shall
Landlord be liable for any loss or damage directly or indirectly arising out of or resulting from such holdover, provided that in the event that the actual date of
commencement is more than sixty (60) days after the date provided in Item 5 of the Basic Lease Provisions (subject to force majeure delays and any delays
caused by Tenant, its agents, employees or contractors), Tenant shall be entitled, as its sole and exclusive remedy, to a rent credit equal to one day's Base Rent for
each day that the Commencement Date is delayed beyond such sixty (60) day period. In the event that the actual date of commencement is more than one (1) year
after the date that this Lease is fully executed (subject to force majeure delays and any delays caused by Tenant, its agents, employees or contractors), Tenant shall
be entitled, as its sole and exclusive remedy, to terminate this Lease upon written notice to Landlord given within thirty (30) days after the expiration of such one
(1) year period (but in any event prior to the date that Landlord delivers possession of the Premises with Landlord's Work substantially complete). Except as set
forth herein, Tenant agrees to accept possession of the Premises at such time as Landlord is able to tender the same, which date shall thenceforth be deemed the
Commencement Date. After the Commencement Date, Tenant shall, upon demand, execute and deliver to Landlord a letter of acceptance of delivery of the
Premises specifying the Commencement Date.

1.4. Condition of the Premises; Commencement Date.

1.5. Early Entry into Premises. Tenant may enter into the Premises commencing on the date that is three (3) weeks prior to the Commencement Date
solely for the purpose of installing furniture, special flooring or carpeting, trade fixtures, telephones, computers, photocopy equipment, and other business
equipment. Such early entry will not advance the Commencement Date so long as Tenant does not commence business operations from any part of the Premises.
All of the provisions of this Lease shall apply to Tenant during any early entry, including the indemnity in Paragraph 12.1, but excluding the obligation to pay
Rent unless and until Tenant has commenced business operations in the Premises, whereupon Rent shall commence. Landlord may revoke its permission for
Tenant's early entry if Tenant's activities or workers interfere with the completion of Landlord's Work. If Tenant is granted early entry, Landlord shall not be
responsible for any loss, including theft, damage or destruction to any work or material installed or stored by Tenant at the Premises or for any injury to Tenant or
its agents, employees, contractors, subcontractors, subtenants, assigns or invitees (collectively, "Tenant's Parties"), unless such theft, damage or destruction
arises out of or results from Landlord's negligence or willful misconduct. Landlord shall have the right to post appropriate notices of non-responsibility and to
require Tenant to provide Landlord with evidence that Tenant has fulfilled its obligation to provide insurance pursuant to paragraphs 7(d) and 12.3 of this Lease.

2. RENT AND SECURITY DEPOSIT.

2.1. Rent. Rent (as defined below) shall accrue hereunder from the Rent Commencement Date set forth in Item 7 of the Basic Lease Provisions. The
amounts per month provided in Item 8 of the Basic Lease Provisions ("Base Rent"), plus the "Additional Rent" (as defined in Paragraph 2.4 below) together with
any other sums payable by Tenant under this Lease shall collectively constitute the "Rent." The seventh full calendar month's Rent shall be due and payable upon
execution of this Lease in the total amount shown in Item 9 of the Basic Lease Provisions. A monthly installment in the same amount, subject to the adjustments
described herein, shall be due and payable without demand on or before the first day of each calendar month succeeding the Commencement Date during the
Term, except that Rent for any fractional calendar month at the commencement or end of the Term shall be prorated on a daily basis.
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, utilities and Additional Rent shall accrue hereunder from the Commencement Date set forth in Item 5 of the
Basic Lease Provisions.

2.2. Security Deposit. Tenant shall deposit with Landlord upon execution of this Lease the sum provided in Item 10 of the Basic Lease Provisions
("Security Deposit™), which sum shall be held by Landlord in its general fund, commingled with Landlord's own funds, without obligation to Tenant for interest,
as security for the performance of Tenant's covenants and obligations under this Lease, it being expressly understood and agreed that the Security Deposit is not
an advance rental deposit or a measure of Landlord's damages in case of Tenant's default. Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default by Tenant, Landlord may,
without prejudice to any other remedy provided herein or provided by law, use the Security Deposit to the extent necessary to make good any arrears of Rent or
other payments due Landlord hereunder, all of which shall be deemed to be Rent, and any other damage, injury, expense or liability caused by such Event of
Default; and Tenant shall pay to Landlord on demand the amount so applied in order to restore the Security Deposit to its original amount. Any remaining balance
of the Security Deposit shall be returned by Landlord to Tenant within sixty (60) days after termination of this Lease, provided all of Tenant's obligations under
this Lease have been fulfilled.

2.3. Tenant's Proportionate Share. "Tenant's Proportionate Share," as used in this Lease, shall mean (a) with respect to the cost of an item attributable to
the Building, that portion of the cost of the applicable item that is obtained by multiplying such cost of the applicable item by a fraction, the numerator of which is
the rentable square footage of the Premises and the denominator of which is the rentable square footage of the Building, which fraction is set forth as a percentage
figure in Item 11 of the Basic Lease Provisions, and (b) with respect to the cost of an item attributable to the common areas or Land in the Project (but not any
buildings in the Project), that portion of such cost of the applicable item that is obtained by multiplying the fraction described in clause (a) above by the portion of
the cost of the applicable item that is allocated to the Building by Landlord in a reasonably consistent manner which reflects the size of the Building and other
buildings, the types of uses to which the Building and other buildings are primarily suited and the relative demands and burdens that such uses place on the
Project.

2.4. Additional Rent.

2.4.1 Definition. In addition to the Base Rent set forth in Paragraph 2.1, Tenant agrees to pay Tenant's Proportionate Share of (a) "Taxes" as defined in
and payable by Landlord pursuant to Paragraph 4.1 below, (b) Landlord's costs of providing insurance on the Project pursuant to Paragraph 12.2 below, and (c)
"Operating Expenses" as defined in and incurred pursuant to Paragraph 5.1 below (collectively, "Additional Rent").

2.4.2 Monthly Payments and Annual Reconciliation. On the first day of each month of the Term, Tenant shall pay Landlord a sum equal to 1/12 of the
estimated amount of Additional Rent for that particular year based on Landlord's reasonable estimate thereof, to be delivered to Tenant on or about January of
each year during the Term. The monthly payments are subject to increase or decrease as determined by Landlord to reflect revised estimates of such costs. Tenant
shall pay within thirty (30) days following demand therefor by Landlord any increases in estimated Additional Rent upon receipt of any initial or revised estimate
retroactive to January of that calendar year. The payments made by Tenant shall be reconciled annually. If Tenant's total payments of Additional Rent are less than
the actual Additional Rent due under Paragraph 2.4.1, Tenant shall pay the difference within thirty (30) days following demand therefor by Landlord; if the total
payments of Additional Rent made by Tenant are more than the actual Additional Rent due under Paragraph 2.4.1, Landlord shall retain such excess and credit it
to Tenant's next accruing Additional Rent payments, except at the end of the Term, when any excess will be refunded. Any failure or delay by Landlord in
delivering any estimate, demand or reconciliation shall not affect the rights and obligations of the parties hereunder.



2.4.3 Tenant's Audit Rights. Provided that Tenant is not then in default beyond any applicable cure period of its obligations to pay Rent, or any other
payments required to be made by it under this Lease and provided further that Tenant shall have the right, once each calendar year, to cause a Qualified Person (as
defined below) to reasonably review supporting data for any portion of an actual statement of annual Operating Expenses delivered by Landlord (the "Actual
Statement") (provided, however, Tenant may not have an audit right to all documentation relating to Building operations as this would far-exceed the relevant
information necessary to properly document a pass-through billing statement, but real estate tax statements, and information on utilities, repairs, maintenance and
insurance will be available), in accordance with the following procedure:

(i) Tenant shall, within one hundred twenty (120) days after any Actual Statement is delivered, deliver a written notice to Landlord specifying the
portions of the Actual Statement that are claimed to be incorrect, and Tenant shall simultaneously pay to Landlord all amounts due from Tenant to Landlord as
specified in the Actual Statement. In no event shall Tenant be entitled to withhold, deduct, or offset any monetary obligation of Tenant to Landlord under the
Lease (including without limitation, Tenant's obligation to make all payments of Rent and all payments of Tenant's Operating Expenses) pending the completion
of any review of records under this Paragraph. The right of Tenant under this Paragraph may only be exercised once for any Actual Statement, and if Tenant fails
to meet any of the above conditions as a prerequisite to the exercise of such right, the right of Tenant under this Paragraph for a particular Actual Statement shall
be deemed waived.

(ii) Tenant acknowledges that Landlord maintains its records for the Project at Landlord's main office, and Tenant agrees that any review of
records under this Paragraph shall be at the sole expense of Tenant and shall be conducted by a Qualified Person. Tenant acknowledges and agrees that any
records reviewed under this Paragraph constitute confidential information of Landlord, which shall not be disclosed to anyone other than the Qualified Person
performing the review, the principals of Tenant who receive the results of the review, and Tenant's accounting employees. The disclosure of such information to
any other person, whether or not caused by the conduct of Tenant, shall constitute an Event of Default under this Lease.
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2.4.4 Any errors disclosed by the review shall be promptly corrected by Landlord, provided, however, that if Landlord disagrees with any such claimed
errors, Landlord shall have the right to cause another review to be made by a Qualified Person. In the event of a disagreement between the two reviews, Landlord
and Tenant shall submit each Qualified Person's conclusion to an independent Qualified Person (chosen by Landlord and Tenant) (the "Arbitrator"). The
Arbitrator shall hear the parties and their evidence and render a decision within thirty (30) days following the selection of such Arbitrator and notify Landlord and
Tenant thereof. Tenant shall bear the expense of the Arbitrator (if any), unless it is determined that Landlord's original determination of the actual Operating
Expenses was in error by more than seven percent (7%), in which event Landlord shall pay the expenses of such Arbitrator. The decision of the Arbitrator shall be
binding on the parties. In the event that the results of the review of records (taking into account, if applicable, the results of any additional review caused by
Landlord) reveal that Tenant has overpaid obligations for a preceding period, the amount of such overpayment shall be credited against Tenant's subsequent
installment obligations to pay the estimated Operating Expense. In the event that such results show that Tenant has underpaid its obligations for a preceding
period, the amount of such underpayment shall be paid by Tenant to Landlord with the next succeeding installment obligation of estimated Operating Expense. In
addition, if it is finally determined that the actual Operating Expenses are less than ninety-three percent (93%) of the Operating Expenses stated in the Actual
Statement, then all of Tenant's reasonable auditing costs shall be borne by Landlord for any such period in which such discrepancy is confirmed (not to exceed
$1,500.00).

() A "Qualified Person" means an accountant or other person experienced in accounting for income and expenses of industrial projects engaged
solely by Tenant on terms which do not entail any compensation based or measured in any way upon any savings in Additional Rent or reduction in Operating
Expenses achieved through the inspection process.

2.5. Payment. Tenant shall pay Landlord all amounts due from Tenant to Landlord hereunder, whether for Rent or otherwise, in lawful money of the United
States, at the place set forth in Item 1 of the Basic Lease Provisions or at such other addresses as Landlord may have hereafter specified by written notice, without
any deduction or offset whatsoever.

2.6. Late. Tenant acknowledges that late payment by Tenant of any sum owed to Landlord under this Lease will cause Landlord to incur costs not
contemplated by this Lease, the exact amounts of which are extremely difficult and impracticable to fix. Such costs include, without limitation, processing and
accounting charges, time spent addressing the issue with Tenant, and late charges that may be imposed on Landlord by the terms of any obligation or note secured
by any encumbrance covering the Premises. Therefore, if any installment of Rent or other payment due from Tenant is not received by Landlord within five (5)
days after the date due, Tenant shall pay to Landlord an additional sum equal to ten percent (10%) of the overdue Rent or other payment as a late charge. Late
charges shall be deemed Additional Rent. The parties agree that this late charge represents a fair and reasonable estimate of the administrative and other costs that
Landlord will incur by reason of a late payment by Tenant. Acceptance of any late payment charge shall not constitute a waiver of Tenant's default with respect to
the overdue payment, nor prevent Landlord from exercising any of the other rights and remedies available to Landlord under this Lease, at law or in equity,
including, but not limited to, the interest charge imposed pursuant to Paragraph 22.2.

3. USE.

3.1. Use of Premises. Subject to any additional uses or limitations on use contained in Item 12 of the Basic Lease Provisions, the Premises shall be used
only for light manufacturing purposes or for the purpose of receiving, storing, shipping and selling (other than retail) products, materials and merchandise made
and/or distributed by Tenant and for such other lawful purposes as may be directly incidental thereto, and for no other use or purpose. Tenant acknowledges that
Landlord has not made any representations or warranties with respect to the suitability of the Premises for Tenant's uses. Tenant and Tenant's Parties shall at all
times comply with all rules and regulations regarding the Premises, the Building and/or the Project as Landlord may establish from time to time. Landlord shall
not be responsible for nor liable to Tenant for any violation and/or enforcement of such rules and regulations by any other tenant of the Project.

Tenant shall be responsible for and shall at its own cost and expense obtain any and all licenses and permits necessary for any such use. Tenant shall comply
with all restrictive covenants affecting Tenant, the Premises or the Project, governmental laws, ordinances, directives, court orders, rules and regulations
applicable to the use of the Premises, including, without limitation, the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 triggered subsequent to the Commencement Date
as a result of Tenant's alterations or use of the Premises. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, and subject to Paragraph 7 below, Tenant shall at its own
cost and expense install and construct all physical improvements to or needed to serve the Premises made necessary by the nature of Tenant's use of the Premises
or any alterations made by or on behalf of Tenant; provided, however, that Landlord shall have the option to install and construct such improvements, in which
case the cost thereof shall be equitably allocated by Landlord in its reasonable discretion among the benefited premises, and Tenant, upon demand, shall pay to
Landlord, as Additional Rent, such portion of the cost thereof as may be allocated equitably, in Landlord's reasonable discretion, to the Premises. Tenant shall not
place a load upon the floor of the Premises which exceeds the load per square foot which such floor was designed to carry and which is allowed by law. Tenant
shall promptly comply with all governmental orders and directives for the correction, prevention and abatement of nuisances in or upon, or connected with, the
Premises, all at Tenant's sole expense. Tenant shall not permit any objectionable or unpleasant odors, smoke, dust, gas, noise or vibrations to emanate from the



Premises, nor take any other action which would constitute a nuisance or would unreasonably disturb or endanger any other tenants of the Project or unreasonably
interfere with their use of their respective premises.

5

Tenant shall not permit the Premises to be used for any purpose or in any manner (including without limitation any method of storage) which would render the
insurance thereon void or the insurance risk more hazardous or cause the state insurance authority to disallow any sprinkler credits. If any increase in the fire and
extended coverage insurance premiums paid by Landlord or other tenants for the Project is caused solely by Tenant's use and occupancy of the Premises, then
Tenant shall pay as Additional Rent the amount of such increase to Landlord, and, upon demand by Landlord, correct at Tenant's expense the cause of such
disallowance, increased cost, penalty or surcharge to the satisfaction of the particular insurance provider or authority, as applicable.

Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, Tenant shall not store any fixtures, furniture, equipment, goods or other personal property outside
of the Premises and, in the event Landlord permits such outside storage in writing, Tenant shall maintain adequate insurance on all such goods and other property.
In no event shall Landlord be liable to Tenant or any other party for any loss, including theft, damage or destruction to such property.

3.2. Hazardous Materials. Except for the incidental use of certain commonly used products for routine cleaning and maintenance of floors, bathrooms,
windows, kitchens, and administrative offices on the Premises or Project, which products have been disclosed by Tenant to Landlord in the Environmental
Questionnaire (as defined below), Tenant hereby represents, warrants and covenants that Tenant will not produce, use, store or generate any "Hazardous
Materials" (as defined below) on, under or about the Premises and/or Project. Tenant has fully and accurately completed Landlord's Pre-Leasing Environmental
Exposure Questionnaire ("Environmental Questionnaire") attached hereto as Exhibit D incorporated herein by reference. If Tenant's Environmental
Questionnaire indicates that Tenant will be utilizing Hazardous Materials, in addition to all other rights and remedies Landlord may have under this Lease,
including, without limitation, declaring a default hereunder by Tenant for breach of representation, Landlord may require Tenant to execute an amendment to this
Lease relating to such Hazardous Materials use and Tenant's failure to execute any such amendment within ten (10) days of Landlord's delivery thereof to Tenant
shall constitute a default hereunder by Tenant. Tenant shall not cause or permit any Hazardous Material to be brought upon, placed, stored, manufactured,
generated, blended, handled, recycled, disposed of, used or released on, in, under or about the Premises and/or Project by Tenant or Tenant's Parties. Tenant shall
not excavate, disturb or conduct any testing of any soils on or about the Project without obtaining Landlord's prior written consent, and any investigation or
remediation on or about the Project shall be conducted only by a consultant approved in writing by Landlord and pursuant to a work letter approved in writing by
Landlord. Tenant shall keep, operate and maintain the Premises in full compliance with all federal, state and local environmental, health and/or safety laws,
ordinances, rules, regulations, codes, orders, directives, guidelines, permits or permit conditions currently existing and as amended, enacted, issued or adopted in
the future which are applicable to the Premises (collectively, "Environmental Laws").

Landlord shall have the right (but not the obligation) to enter upon the Premises and cure any non-compliance by Tenant with the terms of this Paragraph 3.2
or any Environmental Laws or any release, discharge, spill, improper use, storage, handling or disposal of Hazardous Materials on, under, from, or about the
Premises or Project, regardless of the quantity of any such release, discharge, spill, improper use, storage, handling or disposal of Hazardous Materials on or
about the Premises or Project, the full cost of which shall be deemed to be Rent and shall be due and payable by Tenant to Landlord immediately upon demand. If
Landlord elects to enter upon the Premises and cure any such non-compliance or release, discharge, spill, improper use, storage, handling or disposal of
Hazardous Materials on, under, from, or about the Premises or Project, Tenant shall not be entitled to participate in Landlord's activities on the Premises.

If any information provided to Landlord by Tenant in the Environmental Questionnaire, or otherwise relating to information concerning Hazardous Materials
is false, incomplete, or misleading in any material respect, the same shall be deemed an Event of Default by Tenant under this Lease.

Without limiting in any way Tenant's obligations under any other provision of this Lease, Tenant and its successors and assigns shall indemnify, protect,
defend and hold Landlord, its partners, officers, directors, shareholders, employees, agents, lenders, contractors and each of their respective successors and
assigns (collectively, the "Indemnified Parties") harmless from any and all claims, judgments, damages, penalties, enforcement actions, taxes, fines, remedial
actions, liabilities, losses, costs and expenses (including, without limitation, actual attorneys' fees, litigation, arbitration and administrative proceeding costs,
expert and consultant fees and laboratory costs) including, without limitation, damages arising out of the diminution in the value of the Premises or Project or any
portion thereof, damages for the loss of the Premises or Project, damages arising from any adverse impact on the marketing of space in the Premises or Project,
and sums paid in settlement of claims, which arise during or after the Term in whole or in part as a result of the presence of any Hazardous Materials, in, on,
under, from or about the Premises or the Project and/or other adjacent properties resulting directly from Tenant's or Tenant's Parties' activities, or failures to act
(including, without limitation, Tenant's failure to report any spill or release to the appropriate regulatory agencies), on or about the Premises or Project.

Landlord represents and warrants that, to Landlord's actual knowledge as of the date of this Lease, the Premises and the Project are free of all Hazardous
Materials in violation of Environmental Laws.

Landlord and its successors and assigns shall indemnify, defend, reimburse and hold Tenant, its partners, officers, directors, shareholders, employees, agents,
lenders, contractors and each of their respective successors and assigns (collectively, "Landlord's Indemnified Parties"), harmless from any and all claims,
judgments, damages, penalties, enforcement actions, taxes, fines, remedial actions, liabilities, losses, costs and expenses (including, without limitation, actual
attorneys' fees, litigation, arbitration and administrative proceeding costs, expert and consultant fees and laboratory costs), including the cost of remediation,
which exist as a result of Hazardous Materials on the Premises or the Project resulting directly from Landlord's actions, during or after the Term,
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except to the extent brought onto the Premises or Project by Tenant. Landlord's obligations shall include, but not be limited to, the cost of investigation, removal,
remediation, restoration and/or abatement, and shall survive the expiration or termination of this Lease. Tenant may terminate this Lease by notifying Landlord in
writing to such effect within the hereafter defined Remediation Period if Landlord fails in the foregoing sentence's requirement of removal, remediation,
restoration and/or abatement within one hundred eighty (180) days after Tenant's notifying Landlord in writing ("Remediation Period") of the existence of
Hazardous Materials on the Premises pursuant to this subparagraph (subject to any delays caused by Tenant or any force majeure delays), which condition
significantly limits Tenant's use of the Premises. None of the costs or expenses incurred by Landlord in the performance of its obligations under this Paragraph
shall be included in Operating Expenses.

For purposes of this Lease, the term "Hazardous Material" means any chemical, substance, material, controlled substance, object, waste or any combination
thereof, which is or may be hazardous to human health, safety or to the environment due to its radioactivity, ignitability, corrosiveness, reactivity, explosiveness,
toxicity, carcinogenicity, infectiousness or other harmful or potentially harmful properties or effects, including, without limitation, petroleum and petroleum
products, benzene, toluene, ethyl benzene, xylenes, waste oil, asbestos, radon, polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs), degreasers, solvents, and any and all of those
chemicals, substances, materials, controlled substances, objects, wastes or combinations thereof which are now or may become in the future listed, defined or
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regulated in any manner as "hazardous substances," "hazardous wastes,
any and all Environmental Laws.

toxic substances," "solid wastes" or bearing similar or analogous definitions pursuant to

3.3. Use of Common Areas. Tenant and Tenant's Parties shall have the non-exclusive right, in common with the other parties occupying the Project, to use
the grounds, sidewalks, parking areas, driveways and alleys of the Project, subject to such reasonable rules and regulations as Landlord may from time to time
prescribe. Tenant and Tenant's Parties may park only up to the maximum number of automobiles and trucks shown in Item 13 of the Basic Lease Provisions near
the Premises on a non-exclusive basis. Outside storage, including without limitation, trucks and other vehicles, is prohibited without Landlord's prior written
consent, which may be withheld in Landlord's sole and absolute discretion. Tenant shall not succeed to any of Landlord's easement rights over and relating to the
Project, nor shall Tenant obtain any rights to common areas, as designated by Landlord, other than those rights specifically granted to Tenant in this Lease.
Landlord shall have the sole right of control over the use, maintenance, configuration, repair and improvement of the common area. Landlord may make such
changes to the use or configuration of, or improvements comprising, the common area as Landlord may elect without liability to Tenant (including the right to add
or eliminate buildings from the Project), subject only to Tenant's vehicular parking rights shown in Item 13 of the Basic Lease Provisions provided that such
change shall not prohibit or otherwise materially interfere with Tenant's normal business operations for the use permitted hereunder.

4. TAXES.

4.1. Payment of Real Property. Landlord agrees to pay, before they become delinquent, all real property taxes; current installments of any general or
special assessments; license fees, commercial rental taxes, in lieu taxes, levies, charges, penalties or similar impositions imposed by any authority having the
direct power to tax, and are paid or incurred by Landlord, including but not limited to, the following: (a) any tax on or measured by Rent received by Landlord
from the Project or as against Landlord's business of leasing any of the Project; (b) any assessment, tax, fee, levy or charge imposed by governmental agencies for
such services as fire protection, street, sidewalk and road maintenance, transportation, refuse removal and for other governmental services formerly provided
without charge to property owners or occupants; (c) assessments due to deed restrictions and/or owner associations; and (d) costs of determining, filing,
contesting and appealing any such tax, assessment or charge, including accountants', attorneys' and consultants' fees, but excluding any income, inheritance, estate
or corporate franchise taxes of Landlord (collectively, "Taxes"). If, due to a future change in the method of taxation, any franchise, income, profit or other tax,
however designated, shall be levied or imposed in substitution in whole or in part for (or in lieu of) any tax which would otherwise be included within the term
"Taxes" as defined herein, then the same shall be included in the term "Taxes".

4.2. Liability for all Personal Property. Tenant shall be liable for all taxes levied or assessed against personal property, furniture, fixtures, above standard
tenant improvements and alterations, additions or improvements placed by or for Tenant in the Premises. If any such taxes for which Tenant is liable are levied or
assessed against Landlord or Landlord's property and if Landlord elects to pay the same or if the assessed value of Landlord's property is increased by inclusion of
personal property, furniture, fixtures, above-standard tenant improvements or alterations, additions or improvements placed by or for Tenant in the Premises, and
Landlord elects to pay the Taxes based on such increase, Tenant shall pay to Landlord upon demand that portion of the Taxes.

5. LANDLORD'S MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR.

5.1. Landlord's. Landlord shall maintain and repair the roof (above the ceiling tiles), and the foundation and the structural soundness of the Building and
utility facilities stubbed to the Premises in good condition, reasonable wear and tear excepted. The term "walls" as used herein shall not include windows, glass or
plate glass, doors, special store fronts or office entries, unless otherwise specified by Landlord in writing. Landlord shall maintain any water, sewer, gas and other
utility lines located on the Project which serve more than one occupant of the Building, up to the point at which they connect to the Premises (to the extent that
such maintenance, repair and replacement is not the responsibility of the utility company providing service). Landlord shall maintain, repair and repaint the
exterior walls, footings, foundations and structural steel columns and girders, overhead doors, canopies, entries, handrails, gutters and other exposed parts of the
Building to maintain safety and aesthetic standards. Landlord shall maintain, repair, and operate the common areas of the Project, including but not limited to,
mowing grass and general landscaping, maintenance of parking areas, driveways and alleys, parking lot sweeping, paving and restriping, exterior lighting,
painting, pest control and window washing. The cost of all of the foregoing, including the cost of all supplies, uniforms, equipment, tools and materials,
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together with utility costs not otherwise charged directly to Tenant or other tenants, all wages and benefits of employees (not including those above the grade of
manager) and independent contractors engaged in the operation, maintenance and repair of the Project, all expenses for security and safety services and
equipment, any license, permit and inspection fees required in connection with the operation, maintenance or repair of the Project (but not related to
improvements to tenant space), management, consulting, legal and accounting fees of independent contractors engaged by Landlord (but not related to the
negotiation or enforcement of leases), other costs and expenses actually incurred by Landlord in connection with the ownership, operation, leasing and
management of the Project, and other usual costs and expenses which are typically paid by other landlords to provide on-site operation of industrial, warehouse
and service center projects, are collectively referred to herein as "Operating Expenses." To the extent that an Operating Expense consists of a maintenance or
repair (including renovation and refurbishment) expense that is not properly fully deductible as an expense in the year incurred in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, such expense shall be amortized on a straight line basis over its useful life. Any amounts which are amortized, together with
Landlord's actual cost of funds, shall result in equal payments being included in Operating Expenses for the year of expenditure and succeeding years during the
amortization period. Notwithstanding anything contained in this Lease to the contrary, the parties acknowledge that the following items shall not be included in
Operating Expenses under this Lease: (i) costs of alterations of tenant spaces (including all tenant improvements to such spaces); (ii) costs of capital expenditures
(as determined in accordance with GAAP), except that any capital expenditures shall be amortized by Landlord over the useful life of such expense and only the
annual amortized portion of such expense shall be included in annual Operating Expenses; (iii) depreciation, and interest and principal payments on mortgages,
and other debt costs, if any; (iv) real estate brokers' leasing commissions or compensation and advertising and other marketing expenses; (v) costs of other
services or work performed for the singular benefit of another tenant or occupant; (vi) legal, space planning, construction, and other expenses incurred in
procuring tenants for the Building or enforcing, renewing or amending leases with existing tenants or occupants of the Building; (vii) costs of advertising and
public relations and promotional costs and attorneys' fees associated with the leasing of the Building; (viii) any expense for which Landlord actually receives
reimbursement from insurance, condemnation awards, other tenants or any other source; (ix) costs incurred in connection with the sale, financing, refinancing,
mortgaging, or other change of ownership of the Building; (x) property management fees in excess of three percent (3%) of the gross rent from the Building; (xi)
rental under any ground or underlying lease or leases; (xii) Taxes; (xiii) income taxes, excess profit taxes, franchise taxes, estate, succession, inheritance, gift,
mortgage recording and transfer taxes; (xiv) salaries, benefits and other compensation to persons above the grade of building manager, if any; (xv) services
rendered or items provided to tenants or other occupants of the Building by Landlord beyond those services or items rendered or provided by Landlord to all
tenants in the Building (including Tenant) without specific compensation therefor; (xvi) the cost of repairs or replacements incurred by reason of fire or other
casualty or condemnation; (xvii) the amount of any fine, interest or penalty due to Landlord's violation of law and any fines, interest or penalties resulting from
the late payment of Taxes; (xviii) rental and other costs with respect to the Landlord's management office in the Building; (xix) costs attributable to the operation
of the business of Landlord generally or the operation, maintenance and repair of any other real property owned or operated by Landlord, as opposed to costs
specifically attributable to the operation, maintenance and repair of the Building; (xx) political or charitable contributions; (xxi) payments to any reserves or
contingency funds including bad debt and rent loss reserves; (xxii) costs and expenses resulting from the negligence or intentional misconduct of Landlord or its



employees, agents or contractors; (xxiii) any amount paid to a person related to Landlord which is in excess of the amount which would have been paid in the
absence of such relationship; (xxiv) the cost of removing or otherwise dealing with any asbestos or other Hazardous Materials; (xxv) the cost of correcting any
defects in the construction of the Building or any Building equipment to the extent reimbursed under warranty; (xxvi) attorneys' fees and expenses arising from
claims, disputes and potential disputes between Landlord and tenants of the Building; (xxvii) any profit relating to the excess collection of Operating Expenses
from all of the tenants or other occupants of the Building in excess of the actual amount of such Operating Expenses; and (xxviii) legal fees and expenses relating
to the defense of Landlord's title to, or interest in, the Project and/or Building.

5.2. Procedure and Liability. Tenant shall immediately give Landlord written notice of any defect or the need for repair of the items for which Landlord is
responsible, after which Landlord shall have reasonable opportunity to repair the same or cure such defect. Landlord's liability with respect to any defects, repairs
or maintenance for which Landlord is responsible under any of the provisions of this Lease shall be limited to the cost of such repairs or maintenance or the
curing of such defect. If Tenant or Tenant's Parties caused any damage necessitating such repair, then Tenant shall pay the cost thereof, upon demand. Tenant
hereby waives the benefit of any statute or law providing a right to make repairs and deduct the cost thereof from the Rent. Tenant waives any right to terminate
this Lease or offset or abate Rent by reason of any failure of Landlord to make repairs to the Premises.

6. TENANT'S MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR.

6.1. Tenant's Maintenance. Tenant shall, at its own cost and expense, keep and maintain all parts of the Premises (except those listed as Landlord's
responsibility in Paragraph 5.1 above) in good and sanitary condition, normal wear and tear excepted, promptly making all necessary repairs and replacements,
including but not limited to, windows, glass and plate glass, doors, any special store front or office entry, interior walls and finish work, floors, warehouse slab
repairs and floor covering, heating and air conditioning systems, dock boards, truck doors, dock bumpers, plumbing work and fixtures, termite and pest
extermination, and regular removal of trash and debris. If Tenant shall fail to make any repair for which Tenant is responsible within ten (10) days following
written notice from Landlord requiring the same, Landlord and its agents and contractors shall have the right, but not the obligation, to enter upon the Premises
and perform such repairs, the full cost of which shall be deemed to be Rent and shall be due and payable by Tenant to Landlord immediately upon demand. In the
case of emergency, Landlord, its agents and contractors may enter upon the Premises to perform such repairs without the necessity of prior notice to Tenant.
Tenant shall maintain its trash receptacles within the Premises, except that Tenant shall be permitted to maintain a dumpster outside of the Premises in a
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location reasonably agreed upon by the parties. Repairs shall be made in accordance with all applicable laws, including without limitation, the Americans with
Disabilities Act of 1990. The cost of maintenance and repair of any common party wall (any wall, divider, partition or any other structure separating the Premises
from any adjacent premises occupied by other tenants) shall be shared equally by Tenant and the tenant(s) occupying such adjacent premises. Tenant shall not
damage any party wall or disturb the integrity and support provided by any party wall and shall, at its sole cost and expense, promptly repair any damage or injury
to any party wall caused by Tenant or Tenant's Parties.

6.2. Maintenance/Service Contracts. Tenant shall, at its own cost and expense, enter into a regularly scheduled preventive maintenance/service contract
with a maintenance contractor for serving all hot water, heating and air conditioning systems and equipment within, or exclusively serving, the Premises. The
maintenance contractor and the contract must be approved in writing by Landlord in advance which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or
delayed. The service contract shall include all services recommended by the equipment manufacturer within the operation/maintenance manual and shall become
effective (and a copy thereof delivered to Landlord) within thirty (30) days following the date Tenant takes possession of the Premises.

7. ALTERATIONS.

Tenant shall make no alterations, additions or improvements to the Premises (including, without limitation, roof and wall penetrations) or any part thereof
without obtaining the prior written consent of Landlord in each instance, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed. Landlord
may impose as a condition to such consent such requirements as Landlord may reasonably deem necessary, including, without limitation that: (a) Landlord be
furnished with working drawings before work commences; (b) performance and labor and material payment bonds in form and amount and issued by a company
satisfactory to Landlord be furnished; (c) Landlord approve the contractor by whom the work is to be performed; (d) adequate course of construction and general
liability insurance be in place and Landlord be named as an additional insured under the contractor's liability and property insurance policies; and (e) Landlord's
instructions relating to the manner in which the work is to be performed and the times during which it is to be accomplished shall be complied with. Tenant shall
pay to Landlord all costs incurred by Landlord for any architectural, engineering, supervisory or legal services in connection with any alterations, additions or
improvements, including, without limitation, Landlord's review of the plans, specifications and budget for purposes of determining whether to consent. All such
alterations, additions or improvements must be performed in a good and workmanlike manner in compliance with all laws, rules and regulations, including,
without limitation, the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, and diligently prosecuted to completion. Tenant shall deliver to Landlord upon commencement of
such work, a copy of the building permit with respect thereto, and a certificate of occupancy or other final inspection and approval from the applicable
governmental authority having jurisdiction over the Premises and the Project, if applicable, immediately upon completion of the work. All such work shall be
performed so as not to obstruct the access to the premises of any other tenant in the Building or Project. Should Tenant make any alterations, additions or
improvements without Landlord's prior written consent, or without satisfaction of any of the conditions established by Landlord in conjunction with granting such
consent, Landlord shall have the right, in addition to and without limitation of any right or remedy Landlord may have under this Lease, at law or in equity, to
require Tenant to remove all or some of the alterations, additions or improvements at Tenant's sole cost and restore the Premises to the same condition as existed
prior to undertaking the alterations, additions or improvements, or if Tenant shall fail to do so, Landlord may cause such removal or restoration to be performed at
Tenant's expense and the cost thereof shall be Additional Rent to be paid by Tenant immediately upon demand. Landlord shall have the right to require Tenant, at
Tenant's expense, to remove any and all alterations, additions or improvements and to restore the Premises to its prior condition upon the expiration or sooner
termination of this Lease. Tenant shall notify Landlord in writing at least ten (10) days prior to the commencement of any such work in or about the Premises, and
Landlord shall have the right at any time and from time to time to post and maintain notices of non-responsibility in or about the Premises pursuant to applicable
laws.

8. LIENS.

Tenant shall have no authority, express or implied, to create or place any lien or encumbrance of any kind or nature whatsoever upon, or in any manner to
bind, the interest of Landlord or Tenant in the Premises or to charge the Rent payable hereunder for any claim in favor of any person dealing with Tenant,
including, without limitation, those who may furnish materials or perform labor for any construction or repairs. Tenant shall pay or cause to be paid all sums
legally due and payable by it on account of any labor performed or materials furnished in connection with any work performed by Tenant on the Premises. Tenant
shall discharge of record by payment, bonding or otherwise any lien filed against the Premises on account of any labor performed or materials furnished in
connection with any work performed by Tenant on the Premises within thirty (30) days of receiving notice of the filing of any claim of lien. Tenant shall
indemnify, defend and hold Landlord harmless from any and all liability, loss, cost or expense based on or arising out of asserted claims or liens against the
leasehold estate or against the right, title and interest of Landlord in the Project or this Lease arising from the act or agreement of Tenant. Tenant agrees to give
Landlord prompt written notice of the placing of any lien or encumbrance against the Premises. Landlord shall have the right, at Landlord's option, of paying and



discharging the same or any portion thereof without inquiry as to the validity thereof, and any amounts so paid, including expenses and applicable late charge,
shall be Additional Rent immediately due and payable by Tenant upon rendition of a bill therefor.

9. SIGNS.

9.1. Landlord's Signage Program. Tenant shall abide by the terms of Landlord's signage program attached hereto as Exhibit C and incorporated herein as
the same may be changed from time to time at Landlord's sole discretion. Upon vacation of the Premises or the removal or alteration of its sign for any reason,
Tenant shall be responsible, at its sole cost, for the repair, painting and/or replacement of the structure to which signs are attached to its original
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condition. If Tenant fails to perform such work, Landlord may cause the same to be performed, and the cost thereof shall be Additional Rent immediately due and
payable upon rendition of a bill therefor.

9.2. Criteria for Changes. Tenant shall not, without Landlord's prior written consent, which may be withheld in Landlord's sole and absolute discretion: (a)
make any changes to or paint the exterior of the Building; (b) install any exterior lights, decorations or paintings; or (c) erect or install any signs, window or door
lettering, placards, decorations or advertising media of any type which can be viewed from the exterior of the Premises. All signs, decorations, advertising media,
blinds, draperies and other window treatment or bars or other security installations visible from outside the Premises shall be subject to the prior written approval
of Landlord as to construction, method of attachment, size, shape, height, design, lighting, color and general appearance. All signs shall be in compliance with all
applicable laws and regulations and all covenants, conditions and restrictions relating to the Premises. All signs shall be kept in good condition and in proper
operating order at all times.

10. UTILITIES.

Tenant shall pay for all separately metered water, gas, heat, light, telephone, telecommunication, sewer and sprinkler charges and for other utilities and
services used on or from the Premises, together with any taxes, penalties, surcharges or the like pertaining thereto and any maintenance charges for utilities, and
shall furnish all electric light bulbs and tubes. If any utilities serving the Premises are not separately metered, Tenant shall pay to Landlord its proportionate share
of the cost thereof as reasonably determined by Landlord. Landlord shall in no event be liable for any damages directly or indirectly resulting from or arising out
of the interruption or failure of utility services on the Premises. Tenant shall have no right to terminate this Lease nor shall Tenant be entitled to any abatement in
Rent as a result of any such interruption or failure of utility services. No such interruption or failure of utility services shall be deemed to constitute a constructive
eviction of Tenant.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if any Essential Service (as hereinafter defined) which Landlord is required to provide to the Premises pursuant to the terms of
this Section is interrupted due to the negligence or willful misconduct of Landlord (a "Service Interruption") and such Service Interruption causes all or a
material portion of the Premises to be untenantable (the "Affected Space") for a period of five (5) or more consecutive business days after written notice thereof
from Tenant to Landlord (the "Interruption Notice"), then, provided that Tenant shall have ceased operating in the Affected Space, the Rent (including, without
limitation, Base Rent and Additional Rent) shall abate in the proportion that the rentable square footage of the Affected Space in which Tenant shall have ceased

to operate its business bears to the rentable square footage of the Premises, which abatement shall commence on the sixth (G‘h) business day following Landlord's
receipt of the Interruption Notice and expire on the earlier of Tenant's recommencement of business operations in the Affected Space or the date that the Service
Interruption is remedied. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in no event shall Tenant be entitled to abatement or any other remedy if the interruption of any Essential
Service is caused in whole or in part by the negligence of Tenant, its agents, employees, contractors, licensees or invitees. Tenant agrees that, except as expressly
set forth herein, the rental abatement described herein shall be Tenant's sole remedy in the event of a Service Interruption and Tenant hereby waives any other
rights against Landlord, at law or in equity, in connection therewith, including, without limitation, any right to terminate this Lease, to claim an actual or
constructive eviction, or to bring an action for money damages. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event that the Service Interruption continues for a period of
ninety (90) days after Landlord's receipt of the Interruption Notice and provided that Tenant shall have ceased operating in the Affected Space, Tenant shall be
entitled, as its sole and exclusive remedy, to terminate this Lease upon written notice to Landlord given within thirty (30) days after the expiration of such ninety
(90) day period (but in any event prior to the date that the Service Interruption is remedied). For purposes of this Section, an "Essential Service" shall mean the
service provided by the HVAC systems, plumbing and waste disposal systems and electrical systems (to the extent supplied by Landlord). Nothing contained
herein shall limit Tenant's right to abatement in the case of a fire or other casualty or condemnation as provided in the "Fire and Casualty Damage" or
"Condemnation" Sections of this Lease.

11. FIRE AND CASUALTY DAMAGE.

11.1. Notice of Destruction. If the Premises are damaged or destroyed by fire, earthquake or other casualty, Tenant shall give immediate written notice
thereof to Landlord.

11.2. Loss Covered by Insurance. If at any time prior to the expiration or termination of this Lease, the Premises or the Project are wholly or partially
damaged or destroyed, the loss to Landlord from which is fully covered by proceeds of insurance maintained by Landlord or for Landlord's benefit, which
damage renders the Premises totally or partially inaccessible or unusable by Tenant in the ordinary conduct of Tenant's business, then:

11.2.1 If all repairs to the Premises or Project can, in Landlord's reasonable judgment, be completed within one hundred eighty (180) days following the
date of notice to Landlord of such damage or destruction without the payment of overtime or other premiums, and if such damage or destruction is not the result
of the negligence or willful misconduct or omission of Tenant or Tenant's Parties (as contemplated in Paragraph 11.4), Landlord shall, at Landlord's expense
(provided Landlord can obtain all necessary governmental permits and approvals therefor at reasonable cost and on reasonable conditions), repair the same, and
this Lease shall remain in full force and effect and a proportionate reduction of Base Rent shall be allowed Tenant for such portion of the Premises as shall be
rendered inaccessible or unusable to Tenant during the period of time that such portion is unusable or inaccessible. There shall be no proportionate reduction of
Base Rent or other abatement of Rent by reason of any portion of the Premises being unusable or inaccessible for a period equal to three (3) consecutive business
days or less. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if Landlord is unable to substantially complete the repairs set forth above within the afore-mentioned one hundred
eighty (180) day period (subject to force majeure delays and any delays caused by Tenant, its agents, employees or contractors), Tenant
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shall, upon thirty (30) days written notice to Landlord, have the option to terminate this Lease, such notice to be given to Landlord no later than thirty (30) days
after the expiration of such one hundred eighty (180) day period (but in any event prior to the date that Landlord substantially completes such repair work).

11.2.2 If such damage or destruction is not the result of the negligence or willful misconduct or omission of Tenant or Tenant's Parties, and if all such
repairs cannot, in Landlord's reasonable judgment, be completed within one hundred eighty (180) days following the date of notice to Landlord of such damage or



destruction, without the payment of overtime or other premiums, then either party may by written notice to the other given within twenty (20) days following the
date of delivery of Landlord's notice to Tenant of the estimated time to complete the repairs, terminate this Lease as of the date of the occurrence of such damage
or destruction.

Tenant shall pay to Landlord, within ten (10) days following Landlord's demand therefor, the amount of the deductible under Landlord's insurance policy. If
the damage involves portions of the Project in addition to the Premises, Tenant shall pay only a portion of the deductible based on the ratio of the cost of repairing
the damage in the Premises to the total cost of repairing all of the damage in the Project.

11.3. Less Not Covered by Insurance. If, at any time prior to the expiration or termination of this Lease, the Premises or the Project are totally or partially
damaged or destroyed from a risk, the loss to Landlord from which is not fully covered by insurance maintained by Landlord or for Landlord's benefit, which
damage renders the Premises inaccessible or unusable to Tenant in the ordinary course of its business, and if such damage or destruction is not the result of the
negligence or willful misconduct or omission of Tenant or Tenant's Parties, Landlord may, at its option, upon written notice to Tenant within thirty (30) days after
notice to Landlord of the occurrence of such damage or destruction, elect to repair or restore such damage or destruction, or Landlord may elect to terminate this
Lease. If Landlord elects to repair or restore such damage or destruction, this Lease shall continue in full force and effect, but the Rent shall be proportionately
reduced as provided in Paragraph 11.2(a). If Landlord elects to terminate this Lease, such termination shall be effective as of the date of the occurrence of such
damage or destruction.

11.4. Less Caused by Tenant or Tenant's Parties. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the Premises or the Project are wholly or partially damaged or
destroyed as a result of the negligence or willful misconduct or omission of Tenant or Tenant's Parties, Tenant shall forthwith diligently undertake to repair or
restore all such damage or destruction at Tenant's sole cost and expense, or Landlord may at its option undertake such repair or restoration at Tenant's sole cost
and expense; provided, however, that Tenant shall be relieved of its repair and payment obligations pursuant to this Paragraph 11.4 to the extent that insurance
proceeds are collected by Landlord to repair such damage, although Tenant shall in all such events pay to Landlord the full amount of the deductible under
Landlord's insurance policy and any amounts not insured. This Lease shall continue in full force and effect without any abatement or reduction in Rent or other
payments owed by Tenant.

11.5. Destruction Near End of Term. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the Premises or the Project are wholly or partially damaged or destroyed within the
final twelve (12) months of the Term, Landlord may, at its option, elect to terminate this Lease upon written notice given to Tenant within thirty (30) days
following such damage or destruction.

11.6. Destruction of Improvements and Personal Property. In the event of any damage to or destruction of the Premises or the Project, under no
circumstances shall Landlord be required to repair, replace or compensate Tenant, Tenant's Parties or any other person for the personal property, trade fixtures,
machinery, equipment or furniture of Tenant or any of Tenant's Parties, or any alterations, additions or improvements installed in the Premises by Tenant, and
Tenant shall promptly repair and replace all such personal property and improvements at Tenant's sole cost and expense.

11.7. Exclusive Remedy. The provisions of this Paragraph 11 shall constitute Tenant's sole and exclusive remedy in the event of damage or destruction to
the Premises or the Project, and Tenant waives and releases all statutory rights and remedies in favor of Tenant in the event of damage or destruction. No
damages, compensation or claim shall be payable by Landlord for any inconvenience, any interruption or cessation of Tenant's business, or any annoyance,
arising from any damage or destruction of all or any portion of the Premises or the Project.

11.7. Lender Discretion. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, in the event the holder of any indebtedness secured by a mortgage or deed of trust
covering the Premises requires that the insurance proceeds from insurance held by Landlord be applied to such indebtedness, then Landlord shall have the right to
deliver written notice to Tenant terminating this Lease.

12. INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE.
12.1. Indemnity.

12.1.1 Tenant hereby releases all Indemnified Parties, and shall indemnify, protect, defend and hold the Indemnified Parties harmless from any and all
claims, judgments, damages, liabilities, losses, sums paid in settlement of claims, costs and expenses (including, but not limited to, reasonable attorneys' fees and
litigation costs), obligations, liens and causes of action, whether threatened or actual, direct or indirect (collectively, "Claims"), which arise in any way, directly or
indirectly, resulting from or in connection with, in whole or in part, Tenant's or Tenant's Parties' activities in, on or about the Premises or Project, including,
without limitation, Tenant's breach or default of any obligation of Tenant to be performed under the terms of this Lease, the conduct of Tenant's business, the
nonobservance or nonperformance of any law, ordinance or regulation or the negligence or misconduct of Tenant or Tenant's Parties; except injury to persons or
damage to property which is caused by the negligence or willful misconduct of Landlord, or the wrongful failure of Landlord to repair any
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part of the Project which Landlord is obligated to repair and maintain hereunder within a reasonable time after the receipt of written notice from Tenant of needed
repairs. Landlord shall not be liable to Tenant for any damages arising from any act, omission or neglect of any other tenant in the Project.

12.1.2 Subject to Section 12.5 below, Landlord hereby releases Tenant, its partners, officers, directors, shareholders, employees, agents, lenders, and
each of their respective successors and assigns (collectively, the "Tenant's Indemnified Parties"), and shall indemnify, protect, defend and hold the Tenant's
Indemnified Parties harmless from any and all Claims, which arise in any way, directly or indirectly, resulting from or in connection with, in whole or in part,
Landlord's or its agents, employees, contractors or subcontractors ("Landlord's Parties") activities in, on or about the Building or Project, including, without
limitation, Landlord's breach or default of any obligation of Landlord to be performed under the terms of this Lease, the nonobservance or nonperformance of any
law, ordinance or regulation or the negligence or misconduct of Landlord or Landlord's Parties; except injury to persons or damage to property which is caused by
the negligence or willful misconduct of Tenant, or the wrongful failure of Tenant to repair any part of the Premises which Tenant is obligated to repair and
maintain hereunder within a reasonable time after the receipt of written notice from Landlord of needed repairs. Tenant shall not be liable to Landlord for any
damages arising from any act, omission or neglect of any other tenant in the Project.

12.2. Landlord's Insurance. Landlord shall at all times during the Term carry and maintain the following types of insurance in the amounts specified and in
the form hereinafter provided for:

12.2.1 Commercial General Liability Insurance. Commercial general liability insurance against claims for property damage and bodily injury or
death, such insurance to afford protection to the limit of not less than $1,000,000 in respect to property damage, injury or death to any number of persons arising
out of any one occurrence together with an umbrella policy with a limit of at least $5,000,000.



12.2.2 Landlord's Real and Personal Property. Insurance covering the Building in an amount not less than one hundred percent (100%) of full
replacement cost (exclusive of the cost of excavations, foundations and footings), from time to time during the Term, providing protection against perils included
within the standard state form of special form coverage insurance policy, together with insurance against sprinkler damage, vandalism and malicious mischief,
and such other risks as Landlord may from time to time determine and with any such deductibles as Landlord may from time to time determine.

12.2.3 Rent Insurance. Rent insurance with respect to the premises of the tenants in the Project if available at a cost which Landlord in its sole
judgment deems reasonable, against loss of rents in an aggregate amount equal to not more than twenty-four (24) times the sum of (i) the monthly requirement of
monthly Base Rent of such tenants, plus (ii) the average monthly amount estimated from time to time by Landlord to be payable by such tenants as Additional
Rent pursuant to their leases.

12.3. Tenant's Insurance Obligations. Tenant agrees that at all times from and after the date Tenant is given access to the Premises for any reason, Tenant
shall carry and maintain, at its sole cost and expense, the following types, amounts and forms of insurance:

12.3.1 General Liability Insurance. A broad form comprehensive general liability or commercial general liability policy covering property damage,
personal injury, advertising injury and bodily injury, and including blanket contractual liability coverage for obligations under this Lease, covering the Project in
an amount of not less than the amount per occurrence specified in Item 14 of the Basic Lease Provisions. Such policy shall be in the occurrence form with a
policy general aggregate. In addition, Tenant shall maintain an umbrella policy with a limit of at least $5,000,000. Each policy shall name Landlord and any
management agent from time to time designated by Landlord and any lender of Landlord as additional insureds, and shall provide that any coverage to additional
insureds shall be primary; when any policy issued to Landlord provides duplicate coverage or is similar in coverage, Landlord's policy will be excess over
Tenant's policies. No deductibles in excess of Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000) per occurrence shall be permitted. Tenant shall pay any deductibles. The amounts
of such insurance required hereunder shall be subject to adjustment from time to time as required by Landlord based upon Landlord's determination as to (a) the
amounts of such insurance generally required at such time for comparable tenants, premises and buildings in the general geographical location of the Building; (b)
as requested by any lender with an interest in the Building or Project; (c) Tenant's activities; (d) increases in recovered liability claims; (e) increased claims
consciousness by the public; or (f) any combination of the foregoing.

12.3.2 Property Insurance. A policy or policies, including the Boiler and Machinery Perils and the Special Causes of Loss form of coverage ("All
Risks"), including vandalism and malicious mischief, theft, sprinkler leakage (including earthquake sprinkler leakage) and water damage coverage in an amount
equal to the full replacement value, new without deduction for depreciation, on an agreed amount basis (no co-insurance requirement), of all trade fixtures,
furniture and equipment in the Premises, all alterations, additions and improvements to the Premises installed by or for Tenant or provided to Tenant, and all other
personal property owned or leased by Tenant. Such insurance shall also include business interruption and extra expense coverage for Tenant's operations and
debris removal coverage for removal of property of Tenant and Tenant's Parties which may be damaged within the Premises. Such coverage shall name the
Landlord and any management agent from time to time designated by Landlord and any lender of Landlord as additional insureds and/or loss payees as its interest
may appear. No deductibles in excess of Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000) per occurrence shall be permitted. Tenant shall pay any deductibles.
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12.3.3 Workers' Compensation Insurance. Workers' compensation insurance, including employers' liability coverage, shall comply with applicable
California law. Such insurance shall include a waiver of subrogation in favor of Landlord, if available.

12.4. Evidence of Coverage. All of the policies required to be obtained by Tenant pursuant to Paragraph 12.3 shall be with companies and in form
satisfactory to Landlord. Each insurance company providing coverage shall have a current Best's Rating of "A-XII" or better. Upon notice from Landlord, Tenant
shall add Landlord and any management agent from time to time designated by Landlord and any lender of Landlord as an additional insured or loss payee, as
applicable. Tenant shall provide Landlord with certificates and copies of endorsements (and upon request, policies) of insurance acceptable to Landlord issued by
each of the insurance companies issuing any of the policies required pursuant to the provisions of Paragraph 12.3, and said certificates and endorsements shall
provide that the insurance issued thereunder shall not be altered, canceled or non-renewed until after thirty (30) days' written notice to Landlord. "Claims made"
policies shall not be permitted. Each policy shall permit the waiver in Section 12.5 below. Evidence of insurance coverage shall be furnished to Landlord prior to
Tenant's possession of the Premises and thereafter not fewer than fifteen (15) days prior to the expiration date of any required policy. Tenant may satisfy its
insurance obligations hereunder by carrying such insurance under a so-called blanket policy or policies of insurance which are acceptable to Landlord. If Tenant
fails to obtain any insurance required hereby or provide evidence thereof to Landlord, Landlord may, but shall not be obligated to, and Tenant hereby appoints
Landlord as its agent to, procure such insurance and bill the cost of the insurance plus a twenty percent (20%) handling charge to Tenant. Tenant shall pay such
costs to Landlord as Additional Rent with the next monthly payment of Rent.

12.5. Waivers of Subrogation. Landlord and Tenant, for themselves and their respective insurers, hereby release each other of and from any and all claims,
demands, actions and causes of action, (including, without limitation, subrogation claims), for loss or damage to their respective property, even if the loss or
damage shall have been caused by the fault or negligence of the other party, or anyone for whom such party may be responsible. The waiver and release provided
herein shall be effective only with respect to loss or damage covered by insurance or required to be covered by insurance pursuant to the terms of this Lease. Each
party will use its best efforts to cause the relevant insurance policy to contain either (i) a waiver of the insurer's right of subrogation against the other party, or (ii)
a clause or endorsement to the effect that the waiver and release provided herein shall not adversely affect or impair such insurance or prejudice the right of the
insured to recover under the insurance policy.

13.  LANDLORD'S RIGHT OF ACCESS.

Tenant shall permit Landlord and its employees and agents, at all reasonable times upon at least forty-eight (48) hours notice to Tenant (except in the case of
an emergency in which no notice shall be required), in such manner as to cause as little disturbance to Tenant as reasonably practicable (a) to enter into and upon
the Premises to inspect them, to protect the Landlord's interest therein, or to post notices of non-responsibility, (b) to take all necessary materials and equipment
into the Premises, and perform necessary work therein, and (c) to perform periodic environmental audits, inspections, investigations, testing and sampling of the
Premises and/or the Project. No such work shall cause or permit any abatement or rebate of Rent to Tenant for any loss of occupancy or quiet enjoyment of the
Premises, or damage, injury or inconvenience thereby occasioned, or constitute an actual or constructive eviction. Landlord may at any time place on or about the
Building any ordinary "for sale" and "for lease" signs. Tenant shall also permit Landlord and its employees and agents, upon request, to enter the Premises or any
part thereof, at reasonable times during normal business hours, to show the Premises to any fee owners, lessors of superior leases, holders of encumbrances on the
interest of Landlord under the Lease, or prospective purchasers, mortgagees or lessees of the Project or Building as an entirety. During the period of six (6)
months prior to the expiration date of this Lease, Landlord may exhibit the Premises to prospective tenants.

14. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLETTING.

14.1. Landlord's Consent. Tenant shall not assign all or any portion of its interest in this Lease, whether voluntarily, by operation of law or otherwise, and
shall not sublet all or any portion of the Premises, including, but not limited to, sharing them, permitting another party to occupy them or granting concessions or



licenses to another party, except with the prior written consent of Landlord, which Landlord shall not unreasonably withhold, condition or delay. It shall be
considered reasonable for Landlord to withhold consent if: (a) Tenant is in default of this Lease; (b) the assignee or subtenant is unwilling to assume in writing all
of Tenant's obligations hereunder; (c) the assignee or subtenant has a financial condition which is reasonably unsatisfactory to Landlord or Landlord's mortgagee;
(d) the Premises will be used for different purposes than those set forth in Paragraph 3 or for a use requiring or generating increased or different Hazardous
Materials; (e) the proposed assignee or subtenant or its business is subject to compliance with additional requirements of the law (including, without limitation,
related regulations) commonly known as the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 beyond those requirements applicable to Tenant; (f) Tenant proposes to
assign less than all of its interest in this Lease or to sublet the Premises in units that are unusually small for the Project; (g) the assignee or subtenant requires
extensive alterations to the Premises; and (h) the proposed assignee or subtenant or an affiliate thereof is an existing tenant in the Project or is or has been in
discussions with Landlord regarding space within the Project.

14.2. Fees. In connection with each proposed assignment or subletting of the Premises by Tenant, Tenant shall pay to Landlord Landlord's actual costs
including reasonable attorney's fees arising from such request (not to exceed $1,000.00).

14.3. Procedure. Whenever Tenant has obtained an offer to assign any interest in this Lease or to sublease all or any portion of the Premises, Tenant shall
provide to Landlord the name and address of said proposed assignee or sublessee, the base rent and all other compensation to be paid to Tenant, the proposed
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use by the proposed assignee or sublessee, the proposed effective date of the assignment or subletting, and any other business terms which are material to the offer
and/or which differ from the provisions of this Lease ("Notice of Offer"). Tenant shall also provide to Landlord the nature of business, financial statement and
business experience resume for the immediately preceding five (5) years of the proposed assignee or sublessee and such other information concerning such
proposed assignee or sublessee as Landlord may require. The foregoing information shall be in writing and shall be received by Landlord no less than sixty (60)
days prior to the effective date of the proposed assignment or sublease.

Within thirty (30) days following its receipt of a Notice of Offer for the proposed assignment or subletting, Landlord shall be entitled to terminate this Lease
as to all of the Premises (unless Tenant proposes a sublease of a portion of the Premises, in which event Landlord may terminate this Lease as to such portion) by
written notice to Tenant ("Termination Notice"), and such termination shall be effective as of the proposed effective date of the proposed assignment or sublease.
If Landlord does not elect to terminate this Lease, Landlord shall either notify Tenant that Landlord consents to the proposed assignment or subletting or
withholds its consent for reasons to be specified in the notice. If Landlord does not provide a Termination Notice or a notice withholding its consent to Tenant
within thirty (30) days following its receipt of a Notice of Offer, Landlord shall be deemed to have consented to the proposed assignment or subletting.

14.4. Bonus Rent. If any interest in this Lease is assigned or all or any portion of the Premises is subleased, Landlord shall receive fifty percent (50%) of the
"bonus rent" to be realized from such assignment or subletting. The bonus rent shall mean any lump sum payment or other value received by Tenant, plus any
base rent, percentage rent or periodic compensation received by Tenant from or for the benefit of an assignee or sublessee in excess of (a) all amounts owed for
Rent and other charges pursuant to this Lease, and (b) all reasonable commissions and fees paid to any real estate broker or finder who is unaffiliated with Tenant
in connection with the assignment or subletting. If a portion of the Premises is subleased, the amount in clause (a) shall be prorated based on the portion of the
Premises' rentable area to be subleased. The bonus rent shall be paid on the first (1st) day of each calendar month next following Tenant's receipt of each payment
from its assignee or sublessee, after reduction for all amounts described in clauses (a) and (b) above, amortized over the full term of the assignment or sublease.

14.5. Continuing Tenant Obligations. No subleasing or assignment shall relieve Tenant from liability for payment of all forms of Rent and other charges
herein provided or from Tenant's obligations to keep and be bound by the terms, conditions and covenants of this Lease.

14.6. Waiver, Default and Consent. The acceptance of Rent from any other person shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any of the provisions of this Lease
or a consent to the assignment or subletting of the Premises. Any assignment or sublease without the Landlord's prior written consent shall be voidable, at
Landlord's election, and shall constitute a non-curable Event of Default under this Lease. Consent to any assignment or subletting shall not be deemed a consent
to any future assignment or subletting.

14.7. Restructuring of Business Organizations. Any transfer of corporate shares or ownership interests of Tenant, so as to result in a change in the present
voting control of Tenant by the person or persons owning a majority of said corporate shares or ownership interests on the date of this Lease (except for trading
on an exchange), shall constitute an assignment and shall be subject to the provisions of this Paragraph 14.

14.8. Assignment of Sublease Rent. Tenant immediately and irrevocably assigns to Landlord, as security for Tenant's obligations under this Lease, all rents
from any subletting of all or any part of the Premises, and Landlord, as assignee for purposes hereof, or a receiver for Tenant appointed on Landlord's application,
may collect such rents and apply same toward Tenant's obligations under this Lease, except that, until the occurrence of an Event of Default by Tenant, Tenant
shall have the right and license to collect such rents.

14.9. Assignment in Bankruptcy. If this Lease is assigned to any person or entity pursuant to the provisions of the United States Bankruptcy Code, 11
U.S.C. 101 et seq., or such similar laws or amendments thereto which may be enacted from time to time (the "Bankruptcy Code"), any and all monies or other
considerations payable or otherwise to be delivered in connection with such assignment shall be paid or delivered to Landlord, shall be and remain the exclusive
property of Landlord and shall not constitute property of Tenant or of the estate of Tenant within the meaning of the Bankruptcy Code. Any and all monies or
other considerations constituting Landlord's property under the preceding sentence not paid or delivered to Landlord shall be held in trust for the benefit of
Landlord and be promptly paid or delivered to Landlord.

14.10. Assumption of Obligations. Any person or entity to which this Lease is assigned pursuant to the provisions of the Bankruptcy Code shall be deemed,
without further act or deed, to have assumed all of the obligations arising under this Lease on and after the date of such assignment. Any such assignee shall upon
demand execute and deliver to Landlord an instrument confirming such assumption.

14.11. Existing Licensee. Notwithstanding anything contained in this Lease to the contrary, upon execution of this Lease, Landlord shall be deemed to have
consented to Tenant's licensing of a portion of the Premises consisting of approximately 1,600 square feet, designated as the "GLR Facility" on Exhibit F attached
hereto (the "License Space"), to GLR Associates, Inc. ("GLR"). As a result of the license to GLR, Landlord shall not be entitled to any Bonus Rent as set forth
in Section 14.4 of this Lease and Tenant shall not be required to submit any fees to Landlord set forth in Section 14.2 of this Lease. As a condition to Landlord's
consent to the licensing of the License Space to GLR, (i) Tenant shall deliver to Landlord a copy of the license agreement or other occupancy agreement between
Tenant and GLR (the "License Agreement"); (ii) such License Agreement shall contain a provision providing that it is subject to the terms and conditions of this
Lease; and (iii) Tenant shall cause GLR to submit to Landlord a certificate of insurance evidencing a policy of commercial general
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liability insurance with a limit of at least $2,000,000 per occurrence and such other insurance as is required under Sections 12.3.2 and 12.3.3 above. It is expressly
agreed by the partiers hereto that no further consent or action shall be required by Landlord or Tenant with respect to Tenant's license of the License Space to
GLR.

15. CONDEMNATION.

15.1. Total Taking. If the whole or any substantial part of the Premises or the Project shall be taken or damaged because of the exercise of the power of
eminent domain, whether by condemnation proceedings or otherwise, including acts or omissions constituting inverse condemnation, or any transfer of the
Premises or Project or portion thereof in avoidance of the exercise of the power of eminent domain (collectively, a "Taking"), and the Taking would prevent or
materially interfere with the use of the Premises for the purpose for which they are being used, this Lease shall terminate effective when the physical Taking of
the Premises shall occur.

15.2. Partial Taking. If part of the Premises shall be subject to a Taking and this Lease is not terminated as provided in the Paragraph 15.1 above, this Lease
shall not terminate but the Rent payable hereunder during the unexpired portion of this Lease shall be reduced in proportion to the area of the Premises rendered
unusable by Tenant.

15.3. Condemnation Award. The entire award or compensation for any Taking of the Project and/or the Premises, or any part thereof, or for diminution in
value, shall be the property of Landlord, and Tenant hereby assigns its interest in any such award to Landlord; provided, however, Tenant shall be entitled to
pursue with the condemning authority and Landlord shall have no interest in any separate award made to Tenant for loss of business, for relocation purposes, or
for the taking of Tenant's fixtures and improvements.

16. SURRENDER AND HOLDING OVER.

16.1. Surrender. Upon the expiration or sooner termination of this Lease, Tenant shall surrender the Premises in as good condition as when received,
reasonable wear and tear excepted, broom clean and free of trash and rubbish, and free from all tenancies or occupancies by any person. Subject to Landlord's
rights under Paragraph 19.8, Tenant shall remove all trade fixtures, furniture, equipment and other personal property installed in the Premises prior to the
expiration or earlier termination of this Lease. Unless otherwise provided in Paragraph 7 or waived by Landlord in writing prior to the expiration or earlier
termination of this Lease, Tenant shall remove at its sole cost all alterations, additions and improvements made by Tenant to the Premises; provided, however, at
the election of Landlord, all (or such portion as Landlord shall designate) alterations, additions and improvements to the Premises including, without limitation,
all wall coverings, floor coverings, built-in cabinets, paneling and the like, shall become the property of Landlord and remain on the Premises at the end of the
Term. Tenant shall, at its own cost, completely repair any and all damage to the Premises and the Building resulting from or caused by such removal. The
provisions of Paragraph 7 shall apply to such removal and repair work.

16.2. Holding Over. If Landlord agrees in writing that Tenant may hold over after the expiration or earlier termination of this Lease, unless the parties hereto
otherwise agree in writing as to the terms of such holding over, the holdover tenancy shall be subject to termination by Landlord or Tenant at any time upon not
less than thirty (30) days' prior written notice. If Tenant holds over without the consent of Landlord, the same shall be a tenancy at will terminable at any time,
and Tenant shall be liable to Landlord for, and Tenant shall indemnify, protect, defend and hold Landlord harmless from and against, any damages, liabilities,
losses, costs, expenses or claims suffered or caused by such holdover, including, without limitation, reasonable attorneys' fees and damages and costs related to
any successor tenant of the Premises to whom Landlord could not deliver possession of the Premises when promised. All of the other terms and provisions of this
Lease shall be applicable during any holdover period, with or without consent of Landlord, except that Tenant shall pay to Landlord from time to time upon
demand, as Rent for the period of any holdover, an amount equal to one hundred fifty percent (150%) of the then applicable Base Rent plus all Additional Rent in
effect on the termination date, computed on a daily basis for each day of the holdover period. No holding over by Tenant, whether with or without consent of
Landlord, shall operate to extend this Lease. The preceding provisions of this Paragraph 16.2 shall not be construed as Landlord's consent to any holding over by
Tenant.

16.3. Entry at End of Term. If during the last month of the Term, Tenant shall have removed substantially all of Tenant's property and personnel from the
Premises, Landlord may enter the Premises and repair, alter and redecorate the same, without abatement of Rent and without liability to Tenant, and such acts
shall have no effect on this Lease. Tenant shall give written notice to Landlord at least thirty (30) days prior to vacating the Premises and shall arrange to meet
with Landlord for a joint inspection of the Premises prior to vacating. In the event of Tenant's failure to give such notice or arrange such joint inspection,
Landlord's inspection at or after Tenant's vacation of the Premises shall be conclusively deemed correct for purposes of determining Tenant's responsibility for
repairs and restoration.

17. QUIET ENJOYMENT.

Landlord represents and warrants that it has full rights and authority to enter into this Lease and that Tenant, upon paying the Rent and performing its other
covenants and agreements herein set forth, shall peaceably and quietly have, hold and enjoy the Premises for the Term without hindrance or molestation from
Landlord, subject to the terms and provisions of this Lease, any ground lease, any mortgage or deed of trust now or hereafter encumbering the Premises or the
Project, and all matters of record.
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18. EVENTS OF DEFAULT.
The following events shall be deemed to be events of default by Tenant under this Lease (each, an "Event of Default"):
18.1. Failure to Pay Rent. Tenant shall, after at least ten (10) days written notice and opportunity to cure, fail to pay any installment of the Rent herein

reserved when due, or any other payment or reimbursement to Landlord required herein when due (provided, however, that Landlord shall not be obligated to
provide the foregoing written notice of default to Tenant more than two (2) times in any twelve (12) month period and an immediate Event of Default shall occur

upon the third (3rd) (and each subsequent) such failure of Tenant to pay any installment of the Rent due hereunder when due in such twelve (12)-month period).

18.2. Insolvency. Tenant or any guarantor of Tenant's obligations hereunder shall generally not pay its debts as they become due or shall admit in writing the
inability to pay its debts or shall make a general assignment for the benefit of creditors.

18.3. Appointment of Receiver. A receiver or trustee (or similar official) shall be appointed for all or substantially all of the assets of Tenant.

18.4. Bankruptcy. The filing of any voluntary petition by Tenant under the Bankruptcy Code, or the filing of an involuntary petition by Tenant's creditors,
which involuntary petition remains undischarged for a period of sixty (60) days.



18.5. Attachment. The attachment, execution or other judicial seizure or non-judicial seizure of all or substantially all of Tenant's assets located at the
Premises or of Tenant's interest in this Lease or the Premises, if such attachment or other seizure remains undismissed or undischarged for a period of thirty (30)
business days after the levy thereof.

18.6. Vacation of Premises. Tenant shall vacate or abandon all or a substantial portion of the Premises, whether or not Tenant is in default of the Rent or
other charges due under this Lease, without providing Landlord at least fifteen (15) days prior written notice thereof.

18.7. Certificates. Tenant shall fail to deliver to Landlord any subordination agreement within the time limit prescribed in Paragraph 21 below, or a
Certificate of Occupancy for work performed by Tenant (if any), all financial statements or an estoppel certificate within the time limits prescribed in Paragraph
22.7 below.

18.8. Failure to Discharge Liens. Tenant shall fail to discharge any lien placed upon the Premises in violation of Paragraph 8 hereof.

18.9. False Financial Statement. Landlord discovers that any financial statement given to Landlord by Tenant, or any guarantor of Tenant's obligations
hereunder, or any of them, was materially false when given to Landlord.

18.10. Failure to Comply with Lease Terms. Tenant shall fail to comply with any other term, provision or covenant of this Lease, and shall not cure such
failure within thirty (30) days after written notice thereof to Tenant; provided, however, if such failure endangers or threatens life or property and such failure
continues for a period of five (5) business days following written notice thereof the same shall be deemed an Event of Default by Tenant.

18.11. Guarantor Default. Any guarantor of Tenant's obligations hereunder shall be in default under the terms of its guaranty.

18.12. Assignment or Subletting without Consent. Any assignment, subletting or other transfer for which the prior consent of Landlord is required under
this Lease and has not been obtained.

Any notices to be provided by Landlord under this Paragraph 18 shall be the same as, and not in addition to, any notice required under California law.
19. LANDLORD'S REMEDIES.

Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, Landlord may, at its option without further notice or demand and in addition to any other rights and remedies
hereunder or at law or in equity, do any or all of the following:

19.1. Termination. Terminate Tenant's right to possession of the Premises by any lawful means upon at least five (5) days' written notice (which notice may
be satisfied by any notice which may be given by Landlord pursuant to Paragraph 18, if applicable), in which case Tenant shall immediately surrender possession
of the Premises to Landlord and, in addition to any rights and remedies Landlord may have at law or in equity, Landlord shall have the following rights:
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19.1.1 To re-enter the Premises then or at any time thereafter and remove all persons and property and possess the Premises, without prejudice to any
other remedies Landlord may have by reason of Tenant's default or of such termination, and Tenant shall have no further claim hereunder.

19.1.2 To recover all damages incurred by Landlord by reason of the default, including without limitation (i) the worth at the time of the award of the
payments owed by Tenant to Landlord under this Lease that were earned but unpaid at the time of termination; (ii) the worth at the time of the award of the
amount by which the payments owed by Tenant to Landlord under the Lease that would have been earned after the date of termination until the time of the award
exceeds the amount of the loss of payments owed by Tenant to Landlord under this Lease for the same period that Tenant proves could have been reasonably
avoided; (iii) the worth at the time of the award of the amount by which the payments owed by Tenant to Landlord for the balance of the Term after the time of
the award exceeds the amount of the loss of payments owed by Tenant for the same period that Tenant proves could have been reasonably avoided; (iv) all costs
incurred by Landlord in retaking possession of the Premises and restoring them to good order and condition; (v) all costs, including without limitation brokerage
commissions, advertising costs and restoration and remodeling costs, incurred by Landlord in reletting the Premises; plus (vi) any other amount, including
without limitation attorneys' fees and audit expenses, necessary to compensate Landlord for all detriment proximately caused by Tenant's failure to perform its
obligations under this Lease or which in the ordinary course of things would be likely to result therefrom. "The worth at the time of the award," as used in clauses
(i) and (ii) of this paragraph, is to be determined by computing interest as to each unpaid payment owed by Tenant to Landlord under the Lease, at the highest
interest rate permitted by law. "The worth at the time of the award," as referred to in clause (iii) of this paragraph, is to be determined by discounting such
amount, as of the time of award, at the discount rate of the San Francisco Federal Reserve Bank, plus 1%.

19.1.3 To remove, at Tenant's sole risk, any and all personal property in the Premises and place such in a public or private warehouse or elsewhere at the
sole cost and expense and in the name of Tenant. Any such warehouser shall have all of the rights and remedies provided by law against Tenant as owner of such
property. If Tenant shall not pay the cost of such storage within thirty (30) days following Landlord's demand, Landlord may, subject to the provisions of
applicable law, sell any or all such property at a public or private sale in such manner and at such times and places as Landlord deems proper, without notice to or
demand upon Tenant. Tenant waives all claims for damages caused by Landlord's removal, storage or sale of the property and shall indemnify and hold Landlord
free and harmless from and against any and all loss, cost and damage, including without limitation court costs and attorneys' fees. Tenant hereby irrevocably
appoints Landlord as Tenant's attorney-in-fact, coupled with an interest, with all rights and powers necessary to effectuate the provisions of this subparagraph.

19.1.4 1In the event of termination and/or repossession of the Premises for an Event of Default, Landlord shall use reasonable efforts to relet the
Premises and to collect rental after reletting, provided, that, Tenant shall not be entitled to credit or reimbursement of any proceeds in excess of the rental owed
hereunder. Landlord may relet the whole or any portion of the Premises for any period, to any tenant and for any use and purpose. In satisfying Landlord's
responsibility to mitigate its damages, Landlord shall not be obligated:

(1) To solicit or entertain negotiations with any other prospective tenants for the Premises until Landlord obtains full and complete possession of the
Premises including the final and unappealable legal right to re-let the Premises free of any claim of Tenant for possession, or to lease the Premises on terms which
are not commercially reasonable under the circumstances;

(2) To offer the Premises to a prospective tenant when other Premises in the Project suitable for that prospective tenant's use are available;

(3) To lease the Premises to a substitute tenant for a rental substantially less than the then current fair market rental then prevailing for similar uses in
comparable projects in the same market area as the Project (taking into account any tenant allowance offered by Landlord);



(4) To lease the Premises to a proposed substitute tenant whose use would violate any restriction, covenant or requirement contained in the lease of
another tenant of the Project; or

(5) To lease to a proposed substitute tenant who does not have, in Landlord's reasonable opinion, sufficient financial resources or operating experience
to operate the Premises in a first class manner.

19.2. Continuation of Lease. Terminate Tenant's right to possession of the Premises without terminating this Lease, in which case this Lease shall continue
in effect whether or not Tenant shall have abandoned the Premises. In such event, Landlord may enforce all of Landlord's rights and remedies under this Lease,
including the right to recover rent as it becomes due hereunder, and, at Landlord's election, to re-enter and relet the Premises on such terms and conditions as
Landlord deems appropriate. If Landlord relets the Premises or any portion thereof, any rent collected shall be applied against amounts due from Tenant. Landlord
may execute any lease made pursuant hereto in its own name, and Tenant shall have no right to collect any such rent or other proceeds. Landlord's re-entry and/or
reletting of the Premises, or any other acts, shall not be deemed an acceptance of surrender of the Premises or Tenant's interest therein, a termination of this Lease
or a waiver or release of Tenant's obligations hereunder. Landlord shall have the same rights with respect to Tenant's improvements and personal property as
under Paragraph 19.1 above, even though such re-entry and/or reletting do not constitute acceptance of surrender of the Premises or termination of this Lease.
Actions to collect amounts due by Tenant to Landlord under this subparagraph may be brought from time to time, on one or more occasions, without the necessity
of Landlord's waiting until expiration of the Term.
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19.3. Appointment of Receiver. Cause a receiver to be appointed in any action against Tenant and to cause such receiver to take possession of the Premises
and to collect the rents or bonus rent derived therefrom. The foregoing shall not constitute an election by Landlord to terminate this Lease unless specific notice
of such intent is given.

19.4. Late Charge. Charge late charges as provided in Paragraph 2.6.

19.5. Interest. Charge interest on any amount not paid when due as provided in Paragraph 22.2. Interest shall accrue from the date funds are first due or, if
the payment is for funds expended by Landlord on Tenant's behalf, from the date Landlord expends such funds.

19.6. Attorneys' Fees. Collect, upon demand, all reasonable attorneys' fees and expenses incurred by Landlord in enforcing its rights and remedies
hereunder.

19.7. Injunction. To restrain by injunction or other equitable means any breach or anticipated breach of this Lease.
20. LANDLORD DEFAULT; TENANT'S REMEDIES.

20.1. Landlord's Default. Landlord shall not be in default under this Lease unless Landlord fails to perform obligations required of Landlord within thirty
(30) days after written notice is delivered by Tenant to Landlord and to the holder of any mortgages or deeds of trust (collectively, "Lender") covering the
Premises whose name and address shall have theretofore been furnished to Tenant in writing, specifying the obligation which Landlord has failed to perform;
provided, however, that if the nature of Landlord's obligation is such that more than thirty (30) days are required for performance, then Landlord shall not be in
default if Landlord or Lender commences performance within such thirty (30) day period and thereafter diligently prosecutes the same to completion.

20.2. Tenant's Remedies. In the event of any default, breach or violation of Tenant's rights under this Lease by Landlord, Tenant's exclusive remedies shall
be an action for specific performance or action for actual damages. In no event shall Tenant be entitled to consequential, punitive or exemplary damages on
account of any Landlord default. Tenant hereby waives the benefit of any laws granting it the right to perform Landlord's obligation, a lien upon the property of
Landlord and/or upon Rent due Landlord, or the right to terminate this Lease or offset or withhold Rent on account of any Landlord default. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, in the event of any default by Landlord under this Lease beyond all applicable notice and cure periods, Tenant shall have the right to cure any such
default affecting the inside of the Premises only and bill to Landlord the reasonable costs of such cure, which amount shall be paid by Landlord within thirty (30)
days of receipt of a bill therefor with reasonable backup information requested by Landlord. If Landlord fails to pay such amounts within said thirty (30) day
period, such amounts shall accrue interest at the rate of fifteen percent (15%) per annum until paid. Nothing herein shall be construed as a waiver by Landlord of
Landlord's right to contest the validity of any alleged failure pursuant to this Paragraph or as a right of Tenant to setoff any amounts against any installment of
Rent or other sums due Landlord hereunder, and Landlord expressly reserves all rights and remedies available to Landlord for any amounts improperly charged to
Landlord pursuant to this Paragraph.

20.3. Non-Recourse. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Lease, any judgment obtained by Tenant or any of Tenant's Parties against Landlord or
any Indemnified Parties shall be satisfied only out of Landlord's equity interest in the Building and the legal parcel of land on which it sits. Neither Landlord nor
any Indemnified Parties shall have any personal liability for any matter in connection with this Lease or its obligations as Landlord of the Premises, except as
provided above. Tenant shall not institute, seek or enforce any personal or deficiency judgment against Landlord or any Indemnified Parties, and none of their
property shall be available to satisfy any judgment hereunder, except as provided in this Paragraph 20.3.

20.4. Sale of Premises. In the event of any sale or transfer of the Premises (and provided that any security deposit held by the seller, transferor or assignor
(collectively, "Seller") is delivered or credited to the purchaser, transferee or assignee (collectively, "Purchaser"), the Seller shall be and hereby is entirely freed
and relieved of all agreements, covenants and obligations of Landlord thereafter to be performed and it shall be deemed and construed without further agreement
between the parties or their successors in interest or between the Seller and the Purchaser on any such sale, transfer or assignment that such Purchaser has
assumed and agreed to carry out any and all agreements, covenants and obligations of Landlord hereunder.

21. MORTGAGES.

At the election of Landlord, or the holder of any mortgage or deed of trust affecting the Project or any ground lessor, this Lease and all of Tenant's rights
hereunder shall be subject and subordinate at all times to any deed of trust, mortgage or ground lease which may now or hereafter affect the Project, and to all
renewals, modifications, consolidations, replacements and extensions thereof. If any such mortgage or deed of trust is foreclosed or any ground lease terminated,
at the election of Landlord's successor in interest, Tenant agrees, for the benefit of such successor in interest, to attorn to such successor in interest and become its
tenant on the terms and conditions of this Lease for the remainder of the Term, and if required, to enter into a new lease with such successor in interest in the form
of this Lease. Tenant's agreement to attorn shall survive the termination of this Lease. At the request of Landlord, the holder of such mortgage or deed of trust or
any ground lessor, Tenant shall execute, acknowledge and deliver promptly in recordable form any instrument or subordination agreement that Landlord or such
holder may request; provided, however, that such instrument shall include a provision requiring the purchaser at any foreclosure sale to continue this Lease in full
force and effect in the same manner as if such purchaser were the Landlord so long as Tenant is not otherwise in



18

default and requiring Tenant to attorn to such purchaser. In addition, at the request of Landlord, the holder of any mortgage or deed of trust or any ground lessor,
Tenant shall execute, acknowledge and deliver promptly in recordable form any instrument that Landlord or such holder may request to make this Lease superior
to such mortgage, deed of trust or ground lease. Tenant's failure to execute each instrument, release or document within fifteen (15) days after written demand

(which failure continues for an additional five (5) days after a second (2"d) written notice from Landlord) shall constitute an Event of Default by Tenant hereunder
without further notice to Tenant (along with an immediate penalty of $5,000.00, payable by Tenant upon demand therefor), or at Landlord's option Landlord shall
execute such instrument, release or document on behalf of Tenant as Tenant's attorney-in-fact. Tenant does hereby make, constitute and irrevocably appoint
Landlord as Tenant's attorney-in-fact, coupled with an interest, and in Tenant's name, place and stead, to execute such documents in accordance with this
Paragraph 21. Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Lease shall not be subordinate to any future mortgage or ground lease unless the ground lessor or mortgagee
executes and delivers to Tenant a subordination, non-disturbance and attornment agreement containing an agreement that Tenant's leasehold interest hereunder
and other rights and options shall not be disturbed in the event that the ground lessor or mortgagee succeeds to Landlord's rights hereunder, so long as no event of
default exists hereunder beyond applicable notice and cure periods and Tenant attorns to such successor.

22. GENERAL PROVISIONS.

22.1. Singular and Plural. Words of any gender used in this Lease shall be held and construed to include any other gender, and words in the singular
number shall be held to include the plural, unless the context otherwise requires.

22.2. Interest on Past-Due Obligations. Except as expressly herein provided to the contrary, any amount due to Landlord not paid within fifteen (15) days
after the date due shall bear interest at the rate of fifteen percent (15%) per annum from the date due. Payment of such interest shall not excuse or cure any default
by Tenant under this Lease, provided, however, that interest shall not be payable on late charges incurred by Tenant.

22.3. Time of Essence. Time is of the essence.

22.4. Binding Effect. The terms, provisions and covenants and conditions contained in this Lease shall apply to, inure to the benefit of, and be binding upon,
the parties hereto and upon their respective heirs, legal representatives, successors and permitted assigns, except as otherwise herein expressly provided.

22.5. Choice of Law. This Lease shall be governed by the laws of the State in which the Project is located applicable to contracts made and to be performed
in such state.

22.6. Captions. The captions inserted in this Lease are for convenience only and in no way define, limit or otherwise describe the scope or intent of this
Lease, or any provision hereof, or in any way affect the interpretation of this Lease.

22.7. Certificates. Tenant agrees from time to time within ten (10) days after request of Landlord, to deliver to Landlord, or Landlord's designee, a
Certificate of Occupancy for work performed by Tenant or Tenant's Parties in the Premises, annual financial statements (including balance sheets, income
statements and other documents reasonably requested by Landlord) for each of the previous three (3) fiscal years of Tenant, and an estoppel certificate stating that
this Lease is unmodified and in full force and effect (or, if modified, stating the nature of such modification and certifying that this Lease, as so modified, is in full
force and effect), the date to which Rent has been paid, the unexpired Term of this Lease and such other matters pertaining to this Lease as may be requested by
Landlord or Landlord's designee. Any such certificate may be conclusively relied upon by Landlord or Landlord's designee. At Landlord's option, Tenant's failure

to timely deliver such certificate (which failure continues for an additional five (5) days after a second (2Hd) written notice from Landlord) shall be an Event of
Default by Tenant, without further notice to Tenant (along with an immediate penalty of $5,000.00, payable by Tenant upon demand therefor), or it shall be
conclusive upon Tenant that this Lease is in full force and effect, without modification except as may be represented by Landlord, that there are no uncured
defaults in Landlord's performance, and that not more than one (1) month's rent has been paid in advance.

22.8. Amendments. This Lease may not be altered, changed or amended except by an instrument in writing signed and dated by both parties hereto. Tenant
agrees to make such reasonable modifications to this Lease as may be required by any lender in connection with the obtaining of financing or refinancing of the
Project or any portion thereof.

22.9. Entire Agreement. This Lease constitutes the entire understanding and agreement of Landlord and Tenant with respect to the subject matter of this
Lease, and contains all of the covenants and agreements of Landlord and Tenant with respect thereto, and supersedes all prior agreements or understandings.
Landlord and Tenant each acknowledge that no representations, inducements, promises or agreements, oral or written, have been made by Landlord or Tenant, or
anyone acting on behalf of Landlord or Tenant, which are not contained herein, and any prior agreements, promises, negotiations, or representations not expressly
set forth in this Lease are of no force or effect.

22.10. The waiver by Landlord of any term, covenant, agreement or condition herein contained shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any subsequent breach
of the same or any other term, covenant, agreement or condition herein contained, nor shall any custom or practice which may arise between the parties in the
administration of this Lease be construed to waive or lessen the right of Landlord to insist upon the performance by Tenant in strict accordance with all of
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the provisions of this Lease. The subsequent acceptance of Rent hereunder by Landlord shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any preceding breach by Tenant of
any provisions, covenant, agreement or condition of this Lease, other than the failure of Tenant to pay the particular Rent so accepted, regardless of Landlord's
knowledge of such preceding breach at the time of acceptance of such Rent.

22.11. Attorneys' Fees. If either Landlord or Tenant commences or engages in, or threatens to commence or engage in, an action by or against the other party
arising out of or in connection with this Lease or the Premises, including but not limited to any action for recovery of Rent due and unpaid, to recover possession
or for damages for breach of this Lease, the prevailing party shall be entitled to have and recover from the losing party reasonable attorneys' fees and other costs
incurred in connection with the action, preparation for such action, any appeals relating thereto and enforcing any judgments rendered in connection therewith.

22.12. Merger. The voluntary or other surrender of this Lease by Tenant or a mutual cancellation hereof shall not constitute a merger. Such event shall, at the
option of Landlord, either terminate all or any existing subtenancies or operate as an assignment to Landlord of any or all of such subtenancies.

22.13. Survival of Obligations. Paragraphs 2, 3.2, 4.2, 5.2, 8, 12.1, 12.5, 15.3, 16, 19, 20 and 22 and all obligations of Tenant hereunder not fully performed
as of the expiration or earlier termination of the Term shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of the Term, including without limitation, all payment
obligations with respect to Rent and all obligations concerning the condition of the Premises. Upon the expiration or earlier termination of the Term, and prior to



Tenant vacating the Premises, Tenant shall pay to Landlord any amount reasonably estimated by Landlord (i) as necessary to perform Tenant's duties under
paragraphs 6.1 and 16.1 and put the Premises, including without limitation, all heating and air conditioning systems and equipment therein, in good condition and
repair, and (ii) as sufficient to meet Tenant's obligation hereunder for prorated Additional Rent for the year in which the Lease expires or terminates. All such
amounts shall be used and held by Landlord for payment of such obligations, with Tenant being liable for any additional costs therefor upon demand by Landlord,
or with any excess to be returned to Tenant after all such obligations have been determined and satisfied as the case may be. Any Security Deposit held by
Landlord shall be credited against the amounts payable by Tenant under this Paragraph 22.13.

22.14. Severability. If any clause or provision of this Lease is illegal, invalid or unenforceable under present or future laws effective during the Term, the
remainder of this Lease shall not be affected thereby, and in lieu of each clause or provision of this Lease that is illegal, invalid or unenforceable, there shall be
added as a part of this Lease a clause or provision as similar in terms to such illegal, invalid or unenforceable clause or provision as may be possible and be legal,
valid and enforceable.

22.15. Security Measures. Tenant hereby acknowledges that the Rent payable to Landlord hereunder does not include the cost of guard service or other
security measures, and that Landlord shall have no obligation whatsoever to provide same. Tenant assumes all responsibility for the protection of Tenant, Tenants'
Parties and their property from acts of third parties.

22.16. Easements. Landlord reserves to itself the right, from time to time, to grant such easements, rights and dedications that Landlord deems necessary or
desirable, and to cause the recordation of parcel maps, easement agreements and covenants, conditions and restrictions, so long as such easements, rights,
dedications, maps and covenants, conditions and restrictions do not unreasonably interfere with the permitted use of the Premises by Tenant. Tenant shall sign any
of the aforementioned documents upon request of Landlord and failure to do so shall constitute an Event of Default of this Lease.

22.17. Multiple Parties. If more than one person or entity is named as Tenant herein, the obligations of Tenant hereunder shall be the joint and several
responsibility of all persons or entities so named and the signature or verbal agreement (as appropriate) of any one of such persons or entities shall be sufficient to
bind all such persons or entities to any consent, waiver, approval, estoppel, statement, amendment to this Lease or other agreement relating to this Lease.

22.18. Conflict. Any conflict between the printed provisions of this Lease and any typewritten or handwritten provisions shall be controlled by the
typewritten or handwritten provisions.

22.19. No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Lease is not intended by either party to confer any benefit on any third party, including without limitation, any
broker, finder, or brokerage firm.

22.20. Effective Date/Nonbinding Offer. Submission of this Lease for examination or signature by Tenant does not constitute an offer or option for lease,
and it is not effective as a lease or otherwise until executed and delivered by both Landlord and Tenant.

22.21. Notices. Each provision of this Lease or of any applicable governmental laws, ordinances, regulations and other requirements with reference to the
sending, mailing or delivery of any notice or the making of any payment by one party to the other shall be deemed to be complied with when and if the following
steps are taken:

22.21.1 All Rent and other payments required to be made hereunder shall be payable to the applicable party hereto as follows: to Landlord at the address
set forth in Item 1 of the Basic Lease Provisions, and to Tenant at the address set forth in Item 2 of the Basic Lease Provisions, or at such other addresses as the
parties may have hereafter specified by written notice. All obligations to pay Rent and/or any other amounts under the terms of this Lease shall not be deemed
satisfied until such Rent and other amounts have been actually received by the respective party.
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22.21.2 Wherever any notice is required or permitted hereunder, such notice shall be in writing. Any notice or document required or permitted to be
delivered hereunder shall be deemed to be delivered (i) upon personal delivery; (ii) seventy-two (72) hours after deposit thereof in the United States mail, postage
prepaid, certified or registered mail, return receipt requested; (iii) upon confirmation of delivery by Federal Express or other reputable overnight delivery service;
or (iv) upon written confirmation of delivery by telegraph, telecopy or other electronic written transmission device; correctly addressed to the parties hereto as
follows: if to Tenant, then at the address specified in Item 2 of the Basic Lease Provisions; and if to Landlord, then at the address specified in Item 1 of the Basic
Lease Provisions; or at such other address (but no more than one (1) address at a time, except as provided in Paragraph 20.1) as the recipient may theretofore have
specified by written notice.

22.22. Water, Oil and Mineral Rights. Landlord reserves all right, title or interest in water, oil, gas or other hydrocarbons, other mineral rights and air and
development rights, together with the sole and exclusive right of Landlord to sell, lease, assign or otherwise transfer the same, but without any right of Landlord
or any such transferee to enter upon the Premises during the Term except as otherwise provided herein.

22.23. Confidentiality. Tenant agrees to keep the Lease and its terms, covenants, obligations and conditions strictly confidential and not to disclose such
matters to any other landlord, tenant, prospective tenant, or broker; provided, however, Tenant may provide a copy of this Lease to its attorneys, accountants and
bankers, and to a non-party solely in conjunction with Tenant's reasonable and good faith effort to secure an assignee or sublessee for the Premises.

22.24. Broker's Fees. Tenant represents and warrants that it has dealt with no broker, agent or other person in connection with this transaction and that no
broker, agent or other person brought about this transaction, other than the brokerage firm specified in Item 15 of the Basic Lease Provisions, if any, and Tenant
shall indemnify, defend, protect and hold Landlord harmless from and against any claims, losses, liabilities, demands, costs, expenses or causes of action by any
other broker, agent or other person claiming a commission or other form of compensation by virtue of having dealt with Tenant with regard to this leasing
transaction.

22.25. Remedies Cumulative. All rights, privileges and remedies of the parties are cumulative and not alternative or exclusive to the extent permitted by law,
except as otherwise provided herein.

22.26. Return of Check. If Tenant's check, given to Landlord in payment of any sum, is returned by the bank for non-payment, Tenant shall pay to Landlord
immediately on demand, as Additional Rent, all expenses incurred by Landlord as a result thereof.

22.27. Effect of Refund. If Landlord receives payment by Tenant after an Event of Default has occurred, and subsequently returns or refunds such payment
to Tenant, such refund shall have the effect of withdrawing Landlord's acceptance of such payment, as if such payment had never been accepted.

22.28. No Recordation of Lease. Neither this Lease nor any memorandum hereof may be recorded.



22.29. Authority. If Tenant is a corporation or partnership, each individual executing this Lease on behalf of such entity represents and warrants that he or
she is duly authorized to execute and deliver this Lease.

22.30. Interpretation. This Lease shall be construed fairly according to its terms without regard to which party, or which party's attorneys, prepared its form.

22.31. Landlord's Approvals. Except where the provisions of this Lease expressly provide to the contrary, all consents or approvals of Landlord sought or
required pursuant to the terms of this Lease shall not be unreasonably conditioned, withheld or delayed.

22.32. Waiver of Right to Trial by Jury. Tenant hereby waives the right to trial by jury in any action under or related to this Lease.
22.33. Omitted.

22.34. Landlord's Waivers/Subordinations. In connection with any request for a waiver or subordination of Landlord's or its lender's lien rights on Tenant's
personal property, Tenant shall reimburse Landlord for its reasonable attorneys' fees incurred in connection with the review of such waiver or subordination
agreement in an amount not to exceed One Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($1,500.00). Notwithstanding the foregoing, Landlord shall be under no obligation to
execute such a waiver or subordination agreement. Landlord may condition its execution of such waiver or subordination on Tenant depositing with Landlord a
Security Deposit (or an increase of any existing Security Deposit). LIMITATION OF LIABILITY. In consideration of the benefits accruing hereunder, Tenant
and all successors and assigns covenant and agree that, in the event of any actual or alleged failure, breach or default hereunder by Landlord:

(a) the sole and exclusive remedy shall be against Landlord and Landlord's assets;

(b) no partner, shareholder, director, or officer of Landlord shall be sued or named as party in any suit or action (except as may be necessary to secure
jurisdiction of Landlord);

(c) no service of process shall be made against any partner, shareholder, director, or officer of Landlord (except as may be necessary to secure
jurisdiction of Landlord);

(d) no partner, shareholder, director, or officer of Landlord shall be required to answer or otherwise plead to any service of process;
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(e) no judgment will be taken against any partner, director, or officer of Landlord;

(f) any judgment taken against any partner, shareholder, director, or officer of Landlord may be vacated and set aside at any time without hearing;
(g) no writ of execution will ever be levied against the assets of any partner, director, or officer of Landlord; and

(h) these covenants and agreements are enforceable both by Landlord and also by any partner, shareholder, director, or officer of Landlord.

24. OFAC REPRESENTATION.Tenant is not (i) acting, directly or indirectly for, or on behalf of, any person, group, entity or nation named by any Executive
Order (including the September 24, 2001, Executive Order Blocking Property and Prohibiting Transactions With Persons Who Commit, Threaten to Commit, or
Support Terrorism) or the United States Treasury Department as a terrorist, "Specially Designated National and Blocked Person," or other banned or blocked
person, entity, or nation pursuant to any Law that is enforced or administered by the Office of Foreign Assets Control, and is not engaging in this transaction,
directly or indirectly, on behalf of, or instigating or facilitating this transaction, directly or indirectly, on behalf of, any such person, group, entity or nation, nor (ii)
engaged in any dealings or transactions, directly or indirectly, in contravention of any United States, international or other applicable money laundering
regulations or conventions, including, without limitation, the United States Bank Secrecy Act, the United States Money Laundering Control Act of 1986, the
United States International Money Laundering Abatement and Anti-Terrorist Financing Act of 2001, Trading with the Enemy Act (50 U.S.C. SS 1 et seq., as
amended), or any foreign asset control regulations of the United States Treasury Department (31 CFR, Subtitle B, Chapter V, as amended) or any enabling
legislation or executive order relating thereto. Tenant shall, within five (5) days after Landlord's request, provide such information as Landlord may require to
verify the foregoing representations or as may be required in order to enable Landlord to comply with any reporting requirements or applicable laws pertaining to
the foregoing representations.

Tenant agrees that each of the foregoing covenants and agreements shall be applicable to any covenant or agreement either expressly contained in this Lease or
imposed by statute or at common law.

[SIGNATURES ON NEXT PAGE]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Landlord and Tenant have executed and delivered this Lease as of the day and year first above written.

LANDLORD: TENANT:
COLUMBIA CALIFORNIA WARM INTEST SILICON VALLEY CORPORATION,
SPRINGS INDUSTRIAL, LLC, a Delaware corporation
a Delaware limited liability company
By: Columbia Industrial Properties, LLC, By: /s/ Hugh T. Regan, Jr.
A Delaware limited liability company, Its: CFO

Its sole member
By: Lincoln Industrial Manager, LLC,
A Delaware limited liability company,

Its manager

By: Lincoln Advisory Group, Ltd.,



A Texas limited partnership,
Its manager

By: Lincoln GP Advisory Group, Inc.,
A Texas corporation,
Its general partner

By: /s/ Gary E. Kobus
Gary F. Kobus
Its: President
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EXHIBIT 10.2
GUARANTY AGREEMENT

THIS GUARANTY AGREEMENT (this "Guaranty") is given as of the 9th day of January, 2011, by INTEST CORPORATION, a Delaware corporation
("Guarantor"), to and for the benefit of COLUMBIA CALIFORNIA WARM SPRINGS INDUSTRIAL, LLC, and its successors and assigns (collectively,
"Landlord").

RECITALS

A. Landlord and INTEST SILICON VALLEY CORPORATION ("Tenant") are parties to that certain lease agreement dated concurrently herewith (the
"Lease"), pursuant to which Landlord leased to Tenant, and Tenant accepted from Landlord, certain premises described in the Lease (the "Premises") located at
47777 Warm Springs Boulevard, Fremont, California.

B. As a condition to entering into the Lease, Landlord is requiring Guarantor to guaranty and become surety for the payment and performance of all of the
covenants, representations, obligations and liabilities of Tenant under the Lease.

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of Landlord's agreement to allow Guarantor to purchase the shares of Tenant, and the covenants of Guarantor
herein contained, and intending to be legally bound hereby, Guarantor hereby covenants as follows:

1. Guarantor hereby irrevocably and unconditionally guarantees and becomes surety for the prompt and faithful payment and performance of all of the
covenants, obligations and liabilities of Tenant, its successors and assigns, under the Lease, including, but not limited to, the payments of all installments of Rent
(as defined in the Lease), all damages in the event of any uncured Event of Default (as defined in the Lease), and other sums due Landlord thereunder, and also
for all representations of Tenant under the Lease. All of such obligations are incorporated herein.

2. Guarantor expressly consents to any extension of time, leniency, amendment, modification, waiver, forbearance or any changes which may be made in any
terms and conditions of the Lease by written agreement of Landlord and Tenant and in accordance with the Lease, and no such change, modification, extension,
waiver or forbearance shall release Guarantor from any liability or obligation hereby incurred or assumed. Guarantor further expressly waives any notice of
default in or under any of the terms of the Lease, as amended, and waives all setoffs and counterclaims; provided, however, that Guarantor shall be entitled to
receive copies of any notices of default sent by Landlord to Tenant, if but only if the named Tenant shall have assigned its interest in the Lease to a person or
entity not affiliated with Guarantor, and shall be given the same right concurrently to cure any default as that afforded Tenant under the Lease (excluding any
defaults which, by their nature, are not susceptible of cure by Guarantor).

3. TItis specifically understood and agreed that if an uncured Event of Default by Tenant occurs under the Lease, Landlord shall be entitled to commence any
action or proceeding against Guarantor, or otherwise exercise any available remedies at law or in equity to enforce the provisions of this Guaranty without first
commencing any action or otherwise proceeding against Tenant or any other party, or otherwise exhausting all of its available remedies against Tenant.

4. Inthe event that any action is commenced by Landlord to enforce the provisions of this Guaranty, Landlord shall, if it prevails in such action, be entitled
to recover from Guarantor the reasonable costs of such action including reasonable attorneys' fees.

5. No payment by Guarantor to Landlord during the term of this Guaranty shall entitle Guarantor, by subrogation or otherwise, to any payment from Tenant
under or out of the property of Tenant, including but not limited to the revenues derived from the demised premises under the Lease, except after payment in full
to Landlord of all amounts due and payable by Tenant to Landlord pursuant to the Lease.

6. The liability of the Guarantor shall not be deemed to be waived, released, discharged, impaired or affected by reason of the release or discharge of Tenant
or any assignee in any condition, receivership, bankruptcy (including Chapter VII or Chapter XI bankruptcy proceedings or other reorganization proceedings
under the Bankruptcy Code) or other insolvency proceeding, or the rejection or disaffirmation of Tenant or any assignee in any such insolvency proceeding, and
shall continue with respect to all obligations which would have accrued under the Lease absent such rejection or disaffirmation of the Lease.

7. Guarantor acknowledges that it is financially interested in Tenant.

8. Following the termination of this Guaranty, Landlord will, at the request of Guarantor, execute such documents as Guarantor may reasonably request to
acknowledge that this Guaranty is terminated and the Guarantor has no further liability or obligation hereunder.

9. This Guaranty shall inure to the benefit of Landlord, its heirs, personal representatives, successors and assigns and shall be binding upon the heirs,
personal representatives, successors and assigns of the Guarantor.

10. This Guaranty shall be enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of California.

11. This Guaranty shall be irrevocable and shall continue notwithstanding any assignment, sublease or other transfer of the Lease or the Premises or any
interest therein. The obligations of Guarantor, if more than one person or entity, shall be the joint and several obligations of such parties.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Guarantor has duly executed this Guaranty as of the day and year first above written.

INTEST CORPORATION

Witness: /s/ Susan M. Dawson By: /s/ Hugh T. Regan, Jr.
Names: Hugh T. Regan, Jr.
Title: CFO
Address: 804 East Gate Drive, Suite 200
Mt. Laurel, NJ 08054
Tax ID No.: 22-2370659




EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION

1, Robert E. Matthiessen, certify that:
1. Thave reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of inTEST Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect,
the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control
over financial reporting.

Date: May 15, 2012

/s/ Robert E. Matthiessen
Robert E. Matthiessen
President and Chief Executive Officer



EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION

I, Hugh T. Regan, Jr., certify that:
1. Thave reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of inTEST Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect,
the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control
over financial reporting.

Date: May 15, 2012

/s/ Hugh T. Regan, Jr.
Hugh T. Regan, Jr.
Secretary, Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer




EXHIBIT 32.1

inTEST CORPORATION

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of inTEST Corporation (the "Company") on Form 10-Q for the period
ending March 31, 2012 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"), I,
Robert E. Matthiessen, President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section
1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and
results of operations of the Company.

Date: May 15, 2012

/s/ Robert E. Matthiessen
Robert E. Matthiessen
President and Chief Executive Officer



EXHIBIT 32.2

inTEST CORPORATION

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of inTEST Corporation (the "Company") on Form 10-Q for the period
ending March 31, 2012 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"), I,
Hugh T. Regan, Jr., Secretary, Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and
results of operations of the Company.

Date: May 15, 2012

/s/ Hugh T. Regan, Jr.
Hugh T. Regan, Jr.
Secretary, Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer



